March 5, 2010

Dear Stockholders,

Carolina Financial Corporation is pleased to reparnings of $7.2 million for fiscal 2009, as comgzhto
$5.6 million for fiscal 2008, or $3.72 per commdmaee diluted compared to $2.83 per common share
diluted, respectively.

Total assets at December 31, 2009 were stable .4t illion when compared to December 31, 2008.
Loans receivable, net decreased 11.1% to $690.I®m#ét December 31, 2009 from $776.6 million at
December 31, 2008. Total deposits increased td.¥7@illion as of December 31, 2009 from $717.4
million at December 31, 2008, an increase of 6.18tockholders’ equity increased $9.5 million, priitya
due to net income of $7.2 million and an increasthé market value of securities net of tax of $gillion.

Net interest income for fiscal 2009 increased 614%$31.7 million, compared to $29.8 million for d&
2008. Provision for loan losses of $10.5 million2009 compared to $6.4 million in 2008, increaasc
result of an increase in non-performing assets.addition, the company expensed $5.2 million in 200
related to other real estate and mortgage loarrcbpse losses related to mortgage operations agacenh

to $290,000 in 2008. Return on average assetsgl2009 was 0.65% while return on average equity was
14.06%.

As anticipated, levels of non-performing assets @edit losses increased further during the year i@sult
of the distressed residential real estate marketsaonomic recession. Non-performing assets atmber
31, 2009 increased to $35.7 million compared to.$2illion at December 31, 2008. While it is diffit

to know the full extent of the economic downturndathe resulting impact on Carolina Financial
Corporation’s credit quality, we expect furtherr@ases in non-performing assets, correspondinggons
and expenses and net charge-offs in 2010.

Our wholesale mortgage operations experienced gtractivity during 2009, making a significant
contribution to our year-end earnings. An increiaseefinance activity due to lower interest ratesipled
with expanding our own sales efforts in new markets provided positive results.

We were faced with numerous challenges in 200udinoh an increase in non-performing loans, higher
loan loss provisions and a greater level of chaffe-as well as an FDIC special deposit insurance
assessment. Additionally, total FDIC insurancéduding the special assessment was $2.2 million0i®92
compared to $617,000 in 2008, an increase of $1lledHm Nevertheless, credit quality issues remain
major concern and will remain so until the economganingfully improves, housing values begin to
stabilize and the unemployment situation recovers.

We are glad to have your support as a significamt pf our success, sharing our belief that a servi
oriented banking institution can successfully cotagainst larger banking organizations. On bedfabiur
entire staff and Board of Directors, we thank youyfour business, support and trust over the yelan®pe
to see you at our Annual Meeting of ShareholdefSharleston on April 28, 2010.

Sincerely,

\6@\. o, Qe

John D. Russ
President and Chief Executive Officer
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth below are selected consolidated finaranal other data of the Company at and for the gerilndicated. The information below
is only a summary and should be read together thélaccompanying Financial Discussion, which foBdwis data, and the consolidated
financial statements presented herein.

For The Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Operating Data: (In Thousands)
Interest income $ 56,736 63,049 65,572 56,073 33,107
Interest expense 25,019 33,227 37,285 29,711 15,113
Net interest income 31,717 29,822 28,287 26,362 17,994
Provision for loan losses 10,460 6,361 1,775 2,755 1,315
Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 21,257 23,461 26,512 23,607 16,679
Noninterest income 27,938 9,227 8,869 9,063 10,049
Noninterest expense 37,673 23,882 22,301 20,317 17,364
Income before income taxes 11,522 8,806 13,080 12,353 9,364
Income tax expense 4,353 3,256 4,806 4,543 3,378
Net income $ 7,169 5,550 8,274 7,810 5,986
At December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Balance Sheet Data: (In Thousands)
Total assets $ 1,078,757 1,138,994 977,139 804,435 661,449
Interest-bearing cash 17,759 16,285 4,241 8,311 3,715
Securities available for sale 104,401 120,988 157,456 58,091 45,806
Securities held to maturity 125,633 113,689 - - -
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 12,456 11,874 10,147 5,689 5,036
Loans held for sale 71,233 28,283 25,030 30,449 54,357
Loans receivable, net 690,163 776,621 738,705 661,465 517,621
Allowance for loan losses 13,032 11,300 10,083 8,406 5,734
Deposits 761,108 717,389 692,100 622,456 479,154
Short-term borrowed funds 43,787 148,090 85,603 15,117 45,363
Long-term debt 203,638 218,465 137,965 110,465 85,465
Stockholders' equity 56,138 46,591 49,535 40,659 31,883
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For The Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Selected Average Balances:

Total assets $ 1,098,061 1,090,787 864,497 762,158 554,675
Loans receivable, net 737,448 774,183 708,629 608,868 422,194
Deposits 767,814 750,110 665,252 580,472 397,714
Stockholders' equity 50,986 47,552 44,823 35,615 28,098

Performance Ratios:

Return on average equity 14.06% 11.67% 18.46% 21.93% 21.30%
Return on average assets 0.65% 0.51% 0.96% 1.02% 1.08%
Average earning assets to average total assets 94.70% 95.66% 95.22% 94.83% 94.10%
Average loans receivable, net to average deposits 96.05% 103.21% 106.52% 104.89% 106.16%
Average equity to average assets 4.64% 4.36% 5.18% 4.67% 5.07%
Net interest margin 3.05% 2.86% 3.44% 3.65% 3.45%
Net charge-offs to average loans receivable, net 1.18% 0.66% 0.01% 0.01% 0.00%
Non-performing assets to period end loans receivabt 5.17% 2.71% 2.18% 0.19% 0.15%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage

of gross loans receivable (end of period) 1.85% 1.44% 1.35% 1.25% 1.10%

At or For The Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Per Share Data:
Book value (end of period) $ 29.35 24.36 27.55 22.70 18.75
Basic earnings 3.75 2.95 4.61 451 3.53
Diluted earnings 3.72 2.83 4.23 4.10 3.19
Average common shares - basic 1,912,449 1,883,101 1,794,659 1,729,964 1,693,736
Average common shares - diluted 1,924,720 1,960,362 1,954,392 1,902,818 1,876,142



CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
FINANCIAL DISCUSSION

Financial Discussion

Carolina Financial Corporation is not a publiclpded company subject to reporting and disclosuairements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as enumerated in Axtecbf Regulation S-X, Guide 3 or any other requiats for SEC registrants. The

Company also does not have an actively traded méokéts stock. The accompanying Financial Distois is provided to assist the

reader of these consolidated financial statemeamtsis not intended to comply with disclosure regmients of the SEC as enumerated
above.

Discussion of Forward-Looking Statements

The accompanying Financial Discussion containsagertforward-looking statements" concerning risked auncertainties about the
financial condition and future operations of CaraliFinancial Corporation (the “Company”) and itsoll§trowned subsidiary banks,
Community FirstBank of Charleston (“Community FBahk”) and Crescent Bank, (together, the “Banksihd its wholly-owned
subsidiary service corporation, Carolina ServicespOration of Charleston (“Carolina Services”). fegtive July 27, 2009, Carolina
Financial Corporation contributed 100% of its whiawned mortgage subsidiary Crescent Mortgage Cagnf&rescent Mortgage”) to
Community FirstBank. Crescent Mortgage continwesgerate as a wholly owned subsidiary of CommuRitgtBank. These forward-
looking statements, as defined by federal secarltéss, relate to, among others, expectations efbtisiness environment in which the
Company operates, projections of future performantduding operating efficiencies, perceived oppoities in the market, potential
future credit experience, and statements regaitiegcompany’s mission and vision. These forwamkilog statements are based upon
Management’s current expectations, and may, therafvolve risks and uncertainties. Managemenbita to predict results or the
effect of future plans or strategies is inherenthcertain. The Company’s actual results, perfogaaar achievements may differ
materially from those suggested, expressed or @dpby forward-looking statements due to a wide eaafyfactors, including, but not
limited to, the general business environment, gdreronomic conditions nationally and within that8tof South Carolina, interest rates,
the South Carolina and national real estate marikesdemand for mortgage loans, the credit riskeofling activities, including changes
in the levels of and trends of loan delinquencies eharge-offs, results of examinations by our rnkegulators, competitive conditions
between banks and non-bank financial service pessidegulatory changes, changes in federal ang tsta matters and other risks. No
assurance can be given that the results of anyafdrooking statements will be achieved and aatesililts could be affected by one or
more factors, which could cause them to differ mallg. For these statements, we claim the pratacof the safe harbor for forward-
looking statements contained in the Private Seearititigation Reform Act or other applicable legabvisions.

Risk Factors

The Company operates in a business environmenhé#sainherent risks. In addition to the risks andertainties described below, other
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ughat items we currently deem to be immaterial hagome material and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations.

Our business has been adversely affected by dowrgun the local economies of our market areas angther downturns could
significantly adversely impact our business.

Our business is directly affected by market condgi industry and finance trends, legislative aeglilatory changes, and changes in
governmental monetary and fiscal policies and fidfitg all of which are beyond our control. Curtfgriur markets are experiencing a
prolonged recession and continue to reflect weakimebusiness and economic conditions that mayltres(i) a decrease in the demand
for loans and other products and services offesethb Company, (ii) a further decrease in the vaian collateral, or (iii) a further
increase in the number of customers and countépasho become delinquent, file for bankruptcy petibn under bankruptcy laws or
default on their loans or other obligations. Athar increase in the number of delinquencies, hartkies or defaults could result in a
higher level of nonperforming assets, net charde-aind provision for loan losses that could adslgrémpact our results of operations
and financial condition.

Further downturns in the real estate markets in oprimary market area could significantly adversealypact our business.

Our business activities and credit exposure amaaily concentrated in Charleston, Dorchester, Hody counties in South Carolina.

The real estate markets have experienced a signifidecline in these markets and these real estatkets may experience further
declines. As of December 31, 2009, substantidligfahe Company’s loan portfolio is secured bglrestate located in South Carolina. If
real estate values continue to decline, the collhfer these loans will provide less security. @sesult, the borrower’s ability to pay, or
the Company’s ability to recover on defaulted lobpselling the underlying collateral, would be dimhed.

Higher FDIC insurance premiums adversely affect oearnings.
The FDIC insures deposits for the Banks. The FEH@rges the insured financial institution premiumsnaintain the Deposit Insurance

Fund. Current economic conditions have increakechumber and severity of bank failures and theseeapectations for further bank
failures. The FDIC issued guidelines that incrdageemiums paid by insured institutions based atagerisk criteria at the covered
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financial institution. As a result, the Companypesienced an increase in FDIC premiums in 2009 @@88 of approximately $1.6
million.

Changes in interest rates could impact our finant@zondition and results of operations.

The Company’s earnings are significantly dependantet interest income. The primary source of ineds net interest income, which is
the difference between interest earned on intdresting assets and interest paid on interest-tgphaibilities. It is expected that we will
periodically experience “gaps” in the interest regasitivities of our assets and liabilities, mearthat either our interest-bearing liabilities
will be more sensitive to changes in market interates than our interest-bearing assets, or écsav In either event, if market interest
rates should move contrary to our position, thisg'gwould negatively impact earnings.

Concern of customers over deposit insurance maysea decrease in deposits at the Company.

With continued concerns about bank failures, custsrare concerned about FDIC insurance coveragieetmdeposits and may withdraw
deposits from the Company in an effort to ensuat the amount they have on deposit with the Compaeyully insured. Decreases in
deposits may adversely affect our funding costsreetdncome. The FDIC recently increased FDIC iiasage limits on both individual
and commercial accounts. Should the FDIC not raairthese increased limits, this could further éase customer concerns.

The fiscal and monetary policy of the federal gomerent and its agencies could have a material adesgffect on our earnings.

The Federal Reserve Board regulates the supplyookynand credit in the United States. Its policetermine in large part the cost of
funds for lending and investing and the return edran those loans and investments, both of whifdctathe net interest margin. They
also can materially decrease the value of finanostruments that we hold, such as debt securdies mortgage servicing rights. Its
policies also can adversely affect borrowers, p@ty increasing the risk that they may fail tqpag their loans. Changes in Federal
Reserve Board policies are beyond our control &ffatudt to predict; consequently, the impact ofeie changes on our activities and
results of operations is difficult to predict.

Changes in bankruptcy regulations could adverseffeat the Company’s business.

As one component to stemming potential foreclosutes current governmental administration is distus “bankruptcy cram-downs”,
whereby a judge, under certain guidelines, couithterally modify the terms of the contractual dagteement between the borrower and
the lender. If this or similar legislation beconagfective, the impact could significantly adveysehpact the Company’s business.

If the allowance for loan losses is not sufficietd cover actual loan losses, earnings will decrease

Every loan made by the Company carries a riskithaill not be repaid in accordance with its terorsthat any collateral securing it will
not be sufficient to assure payment. This rislafiected by, among other things, cash flows of @ears, changes in the value of
collateral, borrower credit histories, changesdar®mic and industry conditions and duration oflda.

Regulatory agencies, as an integral part of themgnation process, review our loans and the allmedor loan losses. Although we

believe that the allowance for loan losses is adeqjto absorb probable losses in our loan portfeli® cannot predict these losses or
whether our allowance will be adequate or that letgus will not require us to increase this alloean Any of these occurrences could
materially and adversely affect our business, fargrcondition and profitability.

Our funding sources may prove insufficient to regla deposits and support future growth.

We rely on customer deposits, advances from therhaéddiome Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and Federal Reserve\lB&FRB”), and other
borrowings to fund operations. Although the Comyphas historically been able to replace maturingodés and advances, if desired, no
assurance can be given that we would be able facesuch funds in the future if the financial citiod of the FHLB or programs
sponsored by the FRB or other market conditionewerchange. In addition, certain borrowing sosiraee on a secured basis. Due to
changes applied by rating agencies on bonds, ceangellateral requirements or deteriorating lgaality, outstanding borrowings could
be required to be repaid, incurring prepayment piesa Our financial flexibility will be severelgonstrained if we are unable to maintain
access to funding at acceptable interest ratewll¥; if we are required to rely more heavily oona expensive funding sources to support
future operations, our revenues may not increaggoptionally to cover these costs.

In addition, the Company’s mortgage company fundstgage loans held for sale through warehouse bihesedit and purchase and sale
agreements. Due to recent economic conditiong,ceswf warehouse lending have decreased and edigict Crescent Mortgage’s
ability to fund loans held for sale.
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We may elect or be compelled to seek additionaitehjn the future, but that capital may not be afable when it is needed.

We are required by federal regulatory authorit@esnintain adequate levels of capital to supportaperations. Should we elect or be
required by regulatory authorities to raise addiiocapital, we may seek to do so through the resmiaf, among other things, our
common or preferred stock. Our ability to raiséitidnal capital, if needed, will depend on comali$ in the capital markets, economic
conditions and a number of other factors, many loictv are outside of our control, and our finangietformance. Accordingly, there is
no assurance that we will have the ability to radditional capital if needed or on terms acceptablus. Failure to be able to raise
additional capital could result in the Company meteting our regulatory capital standards.

If our investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank éftlanta were impaired in the future, our earningsnd stockholders’ equity would
decrease.

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bdnktlanta. We hold this stock to qualify for menmbleip in the Federal Home
Loan Bank System and to be eligible to borrow fundder the Federal Home Loan Bank’s advance progrBinere is no market for our
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta common stock.ceRe published reports indicate that certain menblaeks of the Federal Home
Loan Bank System may be subject to accounting anhesasset quality risks that could result in naligrlower regulatory capital levels.
In an extreme situation, it is possible that thpitedization of a Federal Home Loan Bank, includihg Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta, could be substantially diminished. Conssgly, we believe that there is a risk that owestment in Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta common stock could be impaired at some timtée future. If this occurs, it would cause earnings and stockholders’ equity to
decrease.

If the decline in value of any of our investment @agities becomes other-than-temporary, we are ragqdito write down the value of
that security through a charge to earnings.

We review our investment securities portfolio atreguarter-end reporting period to determine wirete fair value is below the current
carrying value. When the fair value of any of awestment securities has declined below its cagyialue, we are required to assess
whether the decline is other than temporary. Ifasaclude that the decline is other-than-temponasyare required to write down the
value of that security through a charge to earningbanges in the expected future cash flows cfettscurities and/or prolonged price
declines may result in our concluding in futureipes that the impairment of these securities igethan-temporary, which would require
a charge to earnings to write down these secutiiésir value.

The Company is subject to extensive governmentgltation, which could have an adverse impact on amperations.

The banking industry is extensively regulated amgesvised under both federal and state law. Thapaoy is subject to the regulation
and supervision of the Board of Governors of theédfal Reserve System, the Federal Deposit Insui@aogany, and the South Carolina
Board of Financial Institutions. These regulatians intended primarily to protect depositors,ghblic and the FDIC insurance fund, and
not our shareholders. These regulations goverrtersatanging from the maintenance of adequate alafit the general business
operations and financial condition of the Compamny changes in any federal and state law, as aglegulations and governmental
policies, income tax laws and accounting principterild affect the Company in substantial and wtiptable ways, including ways that
could adversely affect its business, financial ¢towl or results of operations.

The Company is subject to liquidity risk.

The inability of the Company to raise funds throwgposits, borrowings, sale of securities or omirces could have a substantial
negative impact on the Company’s liquidity. Fastthrat could detrimentally impact the Company’seascto liquidity include a decrease
in the level of the Company’s business activityadverse regulatory action against the Company. Gdrapany'’s ability to borrow could
be impaired by such factors as a disruption infithencial markets or negative views and expectatiohthe prospects for the financial
services industry. Although the Company’s cursmirces of funds are considered adequate foriterduiquidity needs, there can be no
assurance in this regard for the future. If adddi debt is needed in the future, there can bassorance that such debt would be
available or, if available, would be on favoraldents. The ability of the Company to raise capitaborrow in the debt markets has been
negatively affected by recent economic conditiotisdditional financing sources are unavailableor available on reasonable terms, the
Company'’s financial condition, results of operai@md future prospects could be adversely affected.

The Company’s 2009 earnings have been highly demamdipon the results of the mortgage operations.

There are a number of items that could adversébgtathe volumes and margin of the Company’s mggaperations. These include, but
are not limited to, the Federal Reserve mortga@édzhsecurities purchase program, aggressivelydbes, the housing market recovery,
the status and financial condition of FNMA and FHCMproposed changes in the FHA lending requiremesxtensive regulatory
changes and liquidity. Should these factors sicguittly impact production of mortgages, it is lik¢hat the Company’s earnings would be
adversely affected.
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The Company’s mortgage operations are subject gmiicant repurchase risk.

The Company is exposed to significant repurchaseon mortgage loan production related to potemé@hbursements for loans sold to
third parties for borrower fraud, underwriting addcumentation issues, early defaults and prepayr@nsold loans. If the Company
experiences significant losses related to repuechiak, it is possible that the reserve establidoeduch exposure is not adequate. We
believe that the reserve related to repurchasegsiallequate to absorb probable losses, howeveramrot predict these losses or whether
our reserve will be adequate. Any of these ocowee could materially and adversely affect our fess, financial condition and
profitability.

Hurricanes, earthquakes and other natural disasteray adversely affect loan portfolios and operat®and increase the cost of doing
business.

The Company operates in markets that are susoeftibhatural disasters. Large-scale natural dismshay significantly affect loan
portfolios by damaging properties pledged as caidf affecting the economies our borrowers liveaind by impairing the ability of the
borrower to repay their loans.

Overview

Carolina Financial Corporation, a bank holding camy is a Delaware corporation that was incorpdratel 996 and began operations in
1997. We operate principally through CommunitysiBank of Charleston and Crescent Bank, both SGatblina state-chartered banks.
Our assets are approximately $1.1 billion at Decamgti, 2009.

Our subsidiaries provide a full range of finanaatvices designed to meet the financial needs o€ustomers, including:

e« Commercial and retail banking

*  Mortgage banking

e Cash management, and

¢ Retail investment services and asset management.

Carolina Financial, through Community FirstBank &réscent Bank, currently conducts business thrd@gbank branches located in the
following counties: Charleston (4), Dorchester, (@hd Horry (4) in South Carolina. Effective Jiy, 2009, Carolina Financial
Corporation contributed 100% of its wholly owned rigage subsidiary Crescent Mortgage Company (“@msdviortgage”) to
Community FirstBank. Crescent Mortgage is locateDekalb County, Georgia, and originates loardQrstates.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ende®ecember 31, 2009 and 2008

Net Income Net income increased $1.6 million, or 29.2%, To2%million, or $3.72 diluted earnings per shangirty 2009 compared to
$5.6 million, or $2.83 diluted earnings per shahering 2008. The net increase in net income pilgnaesulted from increases in net
interest income of $1.9 million to $31.7 millionrthg 2009 compared to $29.8 million during 2008seffby an increase in provision for
loan losses of $4.1 million to $10.5 million duri@§09 compared to $6.4 million during 2008. Noeiast income increased by $18.7
million to $27.9 million during 2009 compared to.$dmillion during 2008. There was also an increaseoninterest expense of $13.8
million to $37.7 million during 2009 compared to3$2 million during 2008. Income tax expense inseeh$1.1 million in 2009 over
2008.

Net Interest Income Net interest income increased $1.9 million, @96, to $31.7 million during 2009 from $29.8 mitli@luring 2008.
This increase is primarily the result of an incee@s the Company’s net interest margin to 3.0592009 from 2.86% in 2008, an
improvement of 19 basis points.

The improvement in net interest margin duringdls2009 over fiscal 2008 is primarily the resulttloé mix of interest-bearing liabilities

to lower-rate liabilities and the repricing of haghrate liabilities, net of the reduction in yieddrned on interest-earning assets. The rate
paid on interest-bearing liabilities in 2009 waS126 as compared to 3.36% in 2008, a reduction dfe&fs points. During fiscal 2009,
the Company focused on increasing checking and ynoreeket deposits and reducing brokered deposiishégher-rate certificates of
deposits. The yield earned on interest-earningtei$8e2009 was 5.46% as compared to 6.04% in 2808duction of 58 basis points.
Fiscal 2008 experienced a falling rate environnmanevidenced by the reduction in the prime rateurirfg fiscal 2008 the prime rate
dropped from 7.25% at the beginning of the yea8.85% by December 31, 2008. During fiscal 2008,ghme rate remained at 3.25%
all year. Accordingly, yields earned on interestting assets and rates paid on interest-beashiities that are tied to the prime rate or
other variable index, reflected a reduction inititerest rates.

Total interest income decreased $6.3 million, 00% to $56.7 million during 2009 from $63.0 milialuring 2008. Average loans
receivable, net decreased $36.7 million, or 4. 28&737.4 million during 2009 from $774.2 milliomrghg 2008. The yield earned on
loans receivable, net decreased to 5.60% from 6 @li%g 2009 and 2008, respectively. At Decemier2B09 and 2008, approximately
65% and 70%, respectively, of the loan portfolimsisted of adjustable rate loans and 35% and 368pectively, are fixed rate loans.
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Additionally, the Company’s net interest income adsersely affected by the Company’s nonaccrualddhat increased to $27.1 million
at the end of 2009 from $13.9 million at the en@@08. Lost interest, interest not recorded inabeompanying consolidated statements
of operations related to loans on nonaccrual, lad@aged off during the period, and loans transteo real estate acquired through
foreclosure, totaled approximately $1.6 million &1d2 for fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively. @kerage balance of securities available
for sale decreased $88.4 million, or 45.6%, to $3@&illion during 2009 from $193.6 million durin@@8. The yield earned on securities
available for sale decreased to 5.16% from 5.76%nd®2009 and 2008, respectively. During 2009 2868, the Company transferred
approximately $30.6 million and $112.3 million, pestively, of securities available for sale to sé®s held to maturity. The average
balance of securities held to maturity increase@7$d million, or 449.2%, to $131.8 million durin@@ from $24.0 million during 2008.
The yield earned on securities held to maturityrelased to 5.57% from 6.31% during 2009 and 20@peetively.

Total interest expense decreased $8.2 million 4or%, to $25.0 million during 2009 from $33.2 nali during 2008. Average interest-
bearing liabilities increased $8.6 million, or 0.98% $996.6 million during 2009 from $988.1 millickuring 2008. Average money market
balances increased $22.1 million, or 22.5%, to $.2flllion during 2009 from $98.4 million during @8. In addition, the effective rate
paid on money markets during 2009 was 1.55% cordpirel.90% during 2008. Average short-term bormmgsi balances decreased
$22.2 million, or 29.1%, to $54.2 million during @® from $76.4 million during 2008. The effectivate paid during 2009 on these
borrowings was 2.51% compared to 2.61% during 2088erage long-term borrowings balances increase8d illion, or 4.6%, to
$215.6 million during 2009 from $206.2 million dog 2008. The effective rate paid during 2009 oes¢hborrowings was 2.73%
compared to 3.49% during 2008.

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan losses increased $4.lionilto $10.5 million during 2009 compared to $6.4liam
during 2008. The Company had net charge-offs of $&illion or 1.28% of average loans receivabld, diging 2009 compared to net
charge-offs of $5.1 million or 0.66% of averagerlsaeceivable, net during 2008. The allowancddan losses was 1.85% of net loans
receivable, or $13.0 million at December 31, 2@G09increase of $1.7 million from the allowancelmn losses of $11.3 million or 1.44%
of the loans receivable, at December 31, 2008. 4héasis point increase in the allowance for lmmses as a percentage of loans
receivable, net is primarily due to the increasenam-performing assets to loans receivable, né&.13% at December 31, 2009 from
2.71% at December 31, 2008. An additional causta@fincrease is continued review of the risk fectelated to the underlying loan
portfolio, including increased delinquencies of saction mortgages, internal loan level risk rgtichanges, and slowing external
economic conditions in the residential real estageket.

Noninterest Income Total noninterest income increased $18.7 mi)lmm202.8%, to $27.9 million during 2009 from $®nillion during
2008. This increase is primarily attributable toiacrease in net gain on sale of loans of $19Mamj net of a reduction in the gain on
derivatives of $728,000 and an increase in thedasaxtinguishment of debt of $659,000.

Net gain on sale of loans held for sale increaseéti4$million, or 423.7%, to $24.0 million during @® compared to $4.6 million during

2008. The increase in net gain on sale of loamd toe sale is due to increased volume and mardinans held for sale originations

increased to $1.7 billion during 2009 compared 7228 million during 2008. Margin on loan salesiieh includes the gain on sale of
loans, net fee income and the change in markeewailuhe pipeline, was 129.6 basis points during926ompared to 64.1 basis points
during 2008.

Net gain on derivatives in 2009 totaled $411,000gared to $1.1 million during 2008. The decreasthé derivative fair values during
the year ended December 31, 2009 was due to uafaleomovement in mortgage interest rates at yedresulting in a decrease in the
derivative values.

The Company incurred losses on extinguishment bf ti¢aling $711,000 and $52,000 in 2009 and 26&ectively on the prepayment
of certain debt advances with interest rates hitfean market at the time of the prepayment.

Noninterest Expense. Total noninterest expense increased $13.8 mill@n57.7%, to $37.7 million during 2009 from $23.9lion
during 2008. This increase is primarily attribuéako increases in salaries and employee beneffisnse, other real estate expense,
mortgage loan repurchase losses, FDIC insurancetaed expenses.

Salaries and employee benefits expense increasetl 6.7 million, or 39.2%, to $20.2 million duri2®09 from $14.5 million during
2008. The increase in compensation and benefiZ)d9 of $4.8 million over 2008 primarily relates @n increase in the number of
employees at the mortgage company and the relatedtives earned during 2009.

Other real estate expense increased $1.8 milliomgl2009 related to write-downs of other real &s@nd the additional expenses of
managing other real estate.

Mortgage loan repurchase losses increased $3.bmilring 2009 as the Company provided for exp@sur mortgage loan production

related to potential reimbursements for loans twlhird parties for borrower fraud, underwritingdadocumentation issues, early defaults
and prepayments of sold loans.
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FDIC insurance expense increased $1.6 million 56 2%, to $2.2 million during 2009 from $617,00Gidg 2008 primarily due to higher
insurance rates and the FDIC special assessm&btLdf000 in the second quarter of 2009.

Other expense increased $1.2 million, or 27.0%$3@ million during 2009 from $4.5 million duringd@8 primarily related to the
increased loan volumes at the mortgage compangrefliere no other individually significant changes.

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense increased $1.1 million to $dilion during 2009 from $3.3 million during 2008The
increase was due to an increase in income befomria taxes in 2009. The Company'’s effective tae veas 37.8% and 37.0% during
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Endedecember 31, 2008 and 2007

Net Income Net income decreased $2.7 million, or 32.9%,8d@ $nillion, or $2.83 diluted earnings per shang;ng 2008 compared to

$8.3 million, or $4.23 diluted earnings per shatering 2007. The net decrease in net income ebtom increases in net interest
income of $1.5 million to $29.8 million during 20@®@mpared to $28.3 million during 2007 offset byiacrease in provision for loan

losses of $4.6 million to $6.4 million during 2068mpared to $1.8 million during 2007. Noninter@stome increased by $358,000 to
$9.2 million during 2008 compared to $8.9 millioarithg 2007. There was also an increase in norgst&xpense of $1.6 million to $23.9
million during 2008 compared to $22.3 million digi#007. Income tax expense decreased $1.6 mifli@d08 over 2007.

Net Interest Income Net interest income increased $1.5 million, @9, to $29.8 million during 2008 from $28.3 mitli@uring 2007.
This increase is a result of an increase in aveirstgeest-earning assets of $220.3 million, or 26.8 $1.0 billion in 2008 from $823.2
million in 2007, which was predominately funded &y increase in average interest-bearing liabiliie$232.6 million, or 30.8%, to
$988.1 million in 2008 from $755.5 million in 200The Company’s net interest margin also decrea6e@bo to 2.9% in 2008 from 3.4%
in 2007. This decrease was due to the Compang&t aensitive balance sheet. The majority of the@any’s loan portfolio consisting
of adjustable rate loans that are indexed to thegamy’s prime rate began to decrease during thengelgalf of 2007 through 2008 and
repriced much more quickly and severely than then@my’s borrowings. In addition, due to nationquidity issues, deposits were very
competitive in local markets and repriced much tess the federal funds rate. From January 1, 20@Becember 31, 2008 the federal
funds rate decreased 4.0% while the Company’s afodeposits only decreased 1.3%. Additionally, @@mpany’s net interest margin
was adversely affected by the Company’s nonperfognassets, consisting of nonaccrual loans and estdte acquired through
foreclosure, that were not accruing interest, iasireg to $21.0 million at the end of 2008 from $i1fillion at the end of 2007. Lost
interest, interest not recorded in the accompangorsolidated statements of operations relatedand on nonaccrual, loans charged off
during the period, and loans transferred to rettesacquired through foreclosure totaled approtetye$l.2 million and $240,000 for
fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Total interest income decreased $2.5 million, &@.to $63.0 million during 2008 from $65.6 milliauring 2007. This decrease is
primarily attributable to the dynamics of averagan and securities balances and the average ayieldd earned. Average loans
receivable, net increased $65.6 million, or 9.266$774.2 million during 2008 from $708.6 million rthg 2007. The yield earned on
loans receivable, net decreased to 6.2% from 8.3f6 gl 2008 and 2007, respectively. Approximatedyerof the loan portfolio consists
of adjustable rate loans and 30% are fixed ratesloaDuring fiscal 2008 the prime rate dropped ffb25% at December 31, 2007 to
3.25% at December 31, 2008. Accordingly, loand tiethe prime rate, or other variable index, reglin a reduction of the interest rates
on these adjustable rate loans. The average leatdrsecurities available for sale increased $1&iilkon, or 168.3%, to $193.6 million
during 2008 from $72.2 million during 2007. Theld earned on securities available for sale ineas 5.8% from 5.3% during 2008
and 2007, respectively. At September 30, 2008 Qbmpany transferred approximately $112.3 milbdisecurities available for sale to
securities held to maturity. The average balaficecurities held to maturity was $24.0 million kv yield of 6.3%.

Total interest expense decreased $4.1 million,008%, to $33.2 million during 2008 from $37.3 nuli during 2007. The decrease in
interest expense is attributable to the dynamidh@faverage balances of interest-bearing liadsliind the yield paid on those liabilities.
During fiscal 2008 the prime rate dropped from %@2&t December 31, 2007 to 3.25% at December 38.28@cordingly, deposits and
borrowings, either directly or indirectly tied tbet prime rate, or other variable index, resulted reduction of the interest rates on these
deposits and borrowings. Average interest-beadiatglities increased $232.6 million, or 30.8%, $888.1 million during 2008 from
$755.5 million during 2007. The increase in therage interest-earning assets was funded primtéribugh certificates of deposit and
borrowings from FHLB and FRB. Average certificatedeposit balances increased $107.6 million, 0B%2 to $580.3 million during
2008 from $472.7 million during 2007. In additiaine effective yield paid during 2008 was 3.8% caned to 5.1% during 2007.
Average short-term and long-term borrowings balarinereased $144.2 million, or 104.1%, to $282.8Bioni during 2008 from $138.4
million during 2007. The effective yield paid dugi2008 on these borrowings was 3.2% comparedgb @uring 2007.

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan losses increased $4.6ionilto $6.4 million during 2008 compared to $1.8liom
during 2007. The Company had net charge-offs of $illion or 0.66% of average loans receivabld, diging 2008 compared to net
charge-offs of $98,000 or 0.01% of average loaosivable, net during 2007. The allowance for lm@ses was 1.4% of loans receivable,
or $11.3 million, at December 31, 2008, an increafs$1.2 million from the allowance for loan lossafs$10.1 million or 1.4% of the
loans receivable, at December 31, 2007. The 0.0@%ase in the allowance for loan losses as aeptage of loans receivable, net is
primarily due to the increase in non-performingesso loans receivable, net to 2.7% at DecembgeP@18 from 2.2% at December 31,
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2007. An additional cause of the increase is oomil review of the risk factors related to the ulyiteg loan portfolio, including
increased delinquencies of construction mortgaigéanal loan level risk rating changes, and slgnésternal economic conditions in the
residential real estate market.

Noninterest Income Total noninterest income increased $358,00@,.@%, to $9.2 million during 2008 from $8.9 milliaturing 2007.
This increase is primarily attributable to an irage in net gain on derivatives of $1.2 million, inarease in sales of non-depository
products of $810,000 and an increase in depositcgecharges of $374,000, net of a decrease ing¢hgain on sale of loans held for sale
of $1.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007.

Net gain on sale of loans held for sale decrea&e@iillion, or 29.2%, to $4.6 million during 20@8mpared to $6.5 million during 2007.
The decrease in net gain on sale of loans heldsdte was primarily due to decreased volume asnaiigins of loans held for sale
decreased to $712.8 million during 2008 comparefio#9.1 million during 2007. The Company’s margimloan sales was 64.1 basis
points during 2008 compared to 67.3 basis pointsxd2007.

Deposit service charges increased $374,000, 0i84t8 $1.4 million during 2008 from $1.1 million dng 2007. This increase is
primarily attributable to an increase in commer&&F charges.

During the latter part of 2007, the Company begéeriog non-depository products through its relaship with Raymond James
Financial Services (“Raymond James”), includingck$o bonds, mutual funds, annuities, insuranceraticement products. Revenues
from sales of these non-depository products we6& $®0 and $57,000 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

During the fourth quarter of 2007 and the first sinnths of 2008, the Company restructured partsoéeécurities portfolio to add more
duration in anticipation of falling interest ratesd take advantage of higher yields in various shment grade securities. In 2008, the
Banks sold $65.0 million of securities recognizen§952,000 net gain on sale of available for sataties. In 2007, the Banks sold
$18.8 million of securities recognizing a $477,@20n on sale of available for sale securities. Bhaks used the proceeds in both years
to purchase various mortgage-backed securities.

Net gain on derivatives in 2008 totaled $1.1 millicompared to a $13,000 loss during 2007. Thee@s® in the derivative fair values
during the year ended December 31, 2008 was ddavtirable movement in mortgage interest rates tieguln an increase in the
derivative values as well as an increase in thenael of interest rate locks.

NoninterestExpense. Total noninterest expense increased $1.6 milliory,. 0%, to $23.9 million during 2008 from $22.3 lioih during
2007. This increase is attributable to increasesalaries and employee benefits expense, occupamtyequipment expense, FDIC
insurance and other expenses.

Salaries and employee benefits expense increaset $876,000, or 2.7%, to $14.5 million during 2068n $14.1 million during 2007.
During 2008, compensation and benefits increase@l illion, offset by a $1.1 million reduction okmense related to a change in the
Company'’s short-term disability program. Priordieanging the short-term disability program to adiparty insurance program, the
Company self-insured for short-term disability. doptermination of the plan, the Company reversegamual of approximately $1.1
million into 2008 earnings. The increase in congaion and benefits primarily relates to an incegascommission expense related to the
Raymond James relationship of $379,000, normal @irmerit increases and an increase in full-time\adents at December 31, 2008 to
217 compared to 204 at December 31, 2007.

Occupancy and equipment expense increased $274000,0%, to $3.0 million during 2008 from $2.7lliah during 2007. The year
over year increase is primarily attributable to%84,000 increase in ATM expenses for the five ATMchines added during fiscal 2008.
In addition, depreciation increased approximate®6,800 related to additions to property and equigmeRent expense increased
approximately $60,000 primarily due to acquiringep for the non-depository operations.

FDIC insurance expense increased $151,000, or 32e1%617,000 during 2008 from $466,000 during 200 he increase is primarily
related to an increase in bank deposits. During/ 20@ FDIC started charging deposit insurancesassents to all insured institutions in
order to increase the reserve ratios of the FDIGd3# Insurance Fund.

Other expense increased $734,000, or 17.9%, to i®éli®n during 2008 from $4.1 million during 2007The increase is primarily
attributable to an increase in legal and other Bgee related to managing nonperforming assets@f,$20, mortgage-banking expenses
related to reimbursements related to early defamtsprepayments of sold loans of $190,000. Tivere no other individually significant
changes.

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense decreased $1.6 million to #8lBon during 2008 from $4.8 million during 2007The

decrease was due to lower income before incoms i@ax2008. The Company'’s effective tax rate wa®%7and 36.7% during 2008 and
2007, respectively.
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

The following table shows changes in interest ineand interest expense based upon changes in valochehanges in interest rates
during the periods indicated:

For The Years Ended December 31,

2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007
Increase (decrease) due to Rate/ Net Dollar Increase (decrease) due to Rate/ Net Dollar
Volume Rate Volume Change Volume Rate Volume Change
(Dollars In Thousands)

Loans held for sale $ 780 248 138 1,166 (401) (178) 37 (542)
Loans receivable, net (2,283) (4,732) 225 (6,790) 5,459 (14,970)  (1,385) (10,896)
Interest-bearing cash 16 (388) (15) (387) 511 (159) (259) 93
Securities available for sale (5,086) (1,164) 531 (5,719) 6,434 331 558 7,323
Securities held to maturity 6,801 a77) (797) 5,827 - - 1,514 1,514
FHLB stock 24 (367) (22) (365) 306 (156) (126) 24
Other investments (26) (32) 13 (45) (2) (37) 1 (38)
Interest income 226 (6,612) 73 (6,313) 12,307 (15,169) 340 (2,522)
Demand accounts 10 (50) ?3) (43) 9) (117) 4 (122)
Money market accounts 421 (351) (79) 9) (706) (2,242) 354 (2,594)
Savings accounts 4 2) 1) 1 1 9) - (8)
Certificates of deposit (110) (6,125) 31 (6,204) 5,512 (6,311)  (1,436) (2,235)

Short-term borrowed funds (581) (79) 23 (637) 3,311 (1,067)  (2,006) 238

Long-term debt 330 (1,479) (68) (1,217) 5,500 (2,625) (2,211) 664
Interest expense 74 (8,086) (97) (8,109) 13,609 (12,371)  (5,295) (4,057)
Net interest income $ 152 1,474 170 1,796 (1,302) (2,798) 5,635 1,535
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Yields on Average Interest-Earning Assets and Ratamn Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities

The following table summarizes the Company’s yieddsaverage interest-earning assets and ratesesagavinterest-bearing liabilities
during the periods indicated:

For The Years Ended December 31,

200¢ 200¢
Interest Average Interes Average
Average Paid/ Yield/ Average Paid, Yield/
Balance Earned Rate Balanct Earnel Rate

(Dollars In Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans held for sale $ 35,761 2,567 7.18% 22,973 1,401 6.10%
Loans receivable, net | 737,44¢ 41,32¢ 5.60% 774,18 48,11¢ 6.21%
Interest-bearing ca 17,03¢ 1¢ 0.11% 16,41: 407 2.48%
Securities available for si 105,26! 5,427 5.16% 193,61¢ 11,14¢ 5.76%
Securities held to matur 131,76( 7,341 5.57% 23,99: 1,51« 6.31%
Federal Home Loan Bank stc 12,15: 3¢ 0.32% 11,47 40z 3.51%
Other investmen 46E 18 3.87% 802 63 7.86%
Total interest-earning ass 1,039,809 56,73¢ 5.46% 1,043,45. 63,04¢ 6.04%
Non-earning asse 58,17( 47,33t
Total asse 1,098,06! 1,090,78
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand accour 26,23 12Z 0.47% 24,72¢ 16€ 0.67%
Money market accour 120,57 1,86¢ 1.55% 98,44¢ 1,87: 1.90%
Savings accour 2,64 1€ 0.61% 2,02¢ 14 0.69%
Certificates of depos 577,36¢ 15,77¢ 2.73% 580,26« 21,98: 3.79%
Short-term borrowed funds 54,211 1,361 2.51% 76,455 1,998 2.61%
Long-term dek 215,62¢ 5,871 2.73% 206,17( 7,19: 3.49%
Total interest-bearing liabiliti 996,64¢ 25,01¢ 2.51% 988,09: 33,22] 3.36%
Noninterest-bearing depos 41,00: 44,64
Other liabilitie: 9,42: 10,50(
Stockholders' equi 50,98 47 55.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ  $ 1,098,06! 1,090,78
Net interest spread 2.95% 2.68%
Net interest margin 3.05% 2.86%
Net interest income 31,717 29,822

(1) Average balances of loans include non-accozald
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Loans by Type
The following table summarizes loans by type andg@ of total at the end of the periods indicated:

At December 31,
2009 2008
% of % of
Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans
(Dollars In Thousands)

Loans Receivable:

Residential mortgage $ 53,094 7.31% 57,682 6.87%
Commercial mortgage 301,344 41.46% 322,595 38.42%
Construction mortgage 14,639 2.01% 66,279 7.89%
Commercial loans 284,889 39.19% 312,099 37.17%
Consumer loans 72,917 10.03% 80,993 9.65%
Total gross loans receivable 726,88 100.00% 839,648 100.00%
Less:
Undisbursed loans in process 23,230 51,000
Allowance for loan losses 13,032 11,300
Deferred fees, net 458 727
Loans receivable, net $ 690,16 776,621

Non-Performing and Problem Assets
The following table summarizes non-performing anobfem assets at the end of the periods indicated.

At December 31,
2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Non-Performing Assets

Non-accrual loans-renegotiated loans $ 3,505 -
Non-accrual loans-other 23,554 13,923
Accruing loans 90 days or more delinquent 771 13
Real estate acquired through foreclosure, net 7,853 7,105
Total Non-Performing Assets $ 35,68 21,041

Problem Assets not included in Non-Performing Assst
Accruing renegotiated loans $ 5,26¢ 1,103

Substantially all of the non-accrual loans, acquimans 90 days or more delinquent and accruinggatiated loans for fiscal 2009 and
2008 are collateralized by real estate. Managerbeli¢ves based on information known and availabieently, the probable losses
related to problem assets are adequately resenteeé allowance for loan losses.

Market Risk Management and Interest Rate Risk

The effective management of market risk is essetttiachieving the Company’s objectives. As aficial institution, the Company’s
most significant market risk exposure is interase risk. The primary objective of managing inserate risk is to minimize the effect that
changes in interest rates have on net income. Sheecomplished through active asset and liabitignagement, which requires the
strategic pricing of asset and liability accound ananagement of appropriate maturity mixes oftass®d liabilities. The expected result
of these strategies is the development of apprgprizaturity and repricing opportunities in thoseamts to produce consistent net
income during periods of changing interest ratéBhe Banks’ Asset/Liability Management Committee#&L(CO") monitor loan,
investment and liability portfolios to ensure coelpensive management of interest rate risk. Thestofios are analyzed for proper
fixed-rate and variable-rate mixes under variouergst rate scenarios. The asset/liability manageérprocess is designed to achieve
relatively stable net interest margins and assgredity by coordinating the volumes, maturities repricing opportunities of interest-
earning assets, deposits and borrowed funds. tliteisesponsibility of the ALCO to determine anthiage the most appropriate volume
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and mix of interest-earning assets and interestiipdiabilities, as well as ensure an adequatelle¥ liquidity and capital, within the
context of corporate performance goals. The ALTD aet policy guidelines and establishes long-tetnategies with respect to interest
rate risk exposure and liquidity. The ALCO meeaularly to review the Company'’s interest rate @sld liquidity positions in relation to
present and prospective market and business conslitand adopt funding and balance sheet managestnategies that are intended to
ensure that the potential impact on earnings apuddity as a result of fluctuations in interesieats within acceptable standards.

The Company uses interest rate sensitivity anatpsimeasure the sensitivity of projected net irgeirecome to changes in interest rates.
Management monitors the Company'’s interest seitgifdy means of a computer model that incorporatesent volumes, average rates
earned and paid, and scheduled maturities, paynoérasset and liability portfolios, together wittultiple scenarios of prepayments,

repricing opportunities and anticipated volume girow Interest rate sensitivity analysis shows tfiece that the indicated changes in

interest rates would have on net interest incomerajected for the next twelve months under theenrinterest rate environment. The

resulting change in net interest income refleatsi¢ivel of sensitivity that net interest income tmagelation to changing interest rates.

The following table summarizes the Company’s irgerate sensitivity position at the Banks as of é&eler 31, 2009:

Interest Rate Scenario Percentage Change in
Change Prime Rate Net Interest Income
0.00% 3.25% 0.00%

1.00% 4.25% -1.05%
2.00% 5.25% -1.73%
3.00% 6.25% 3.25%

The Company also uses derivatives intended to sedhterest rate risk incurred as a result of markevements. These derivatives
primarily consist of mortgage loan interest ratekleommitments, forward mortgage loan sales commitsiand options to deliver
mortgage-backed securities. A derivative is arfaia instrument that derives its cash flows, ametefore its value, by reference to an
underlying instrument, index or referenced interagt. The Company uses derivatives primarily toimmize interest rate risk related to
its pipeline of loan interest rate lock commitmeistued on residential mortgage loans in the psoésrigination for sale or loans held
for sale. Forward mortgage loan sales commitmantsoptions to deliver mortgage-backed securitias generally correspond with the
composition of the locked pipeline are used to ecunally hedge a percentage of the Company’s logkieeline. The Company’s
Secondary Market Committee has developed a compsatechedging policy to monitor the use of derivesi to reduce interest rate risk.
The Company’s derivative positions are classifisdrading assets and liabilities, and as suchcltia@ges in the fair market value of the
derivative positions are recognized in the constéid statement of operations.

The derivative positions of the Company at Decen¥ie2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Fair Notional Fair Notional
Value Value Value Value
(In Thousands)

Derivative assets -

Mortgage loan interest rate lock commitments $ 428 46,588 1,999 222,994
Forward mortgage loan sales commitments 1,914 130,000 - -
$ 2,342 1,999

Derivative liabilities -
Forward mortgage loan sales commitments $ 891 177,282 959 121,000
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Liquidity and Financial Condition

The Company’s assets and liabilities are monitaneda daily basis to ensure funds are available eetrtiquidity requirements. The
Company also utilizes borrowing facilities in order maintain adequate liquidity including: the FedeHome Loan Bank of Atlanta
(“FHLB") advance window, the Federal Reserve B&aRB"), federal funds purchased, and warehouseslwfecredit. Periodically, the
Company will use wholesale deposit products, inidlgdbrokered deposits as well as national certiéicd deposit services. Additionally,
the Company has certain investment securitiesifieas available for sale that are carried atkeavalue with changes in market value,
net of tax, recorded through stockholders’ equity.

Lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan BankAdlanta are based upon FHLB-approved percentagd3aok assets, but must be
supported by appropriate collateral to be available Banks have pledged approximately $177.8anilbif first lien residential mortgage,
second lien residential mortgage, residential heapéty line of credit, commercial mortgage and rfauhily mortgage portfolios under

blanket lien agreements as collateral for theseamcks. In addition, the Company has pledged $88l&n of securities for these

advances. At December 31, 2009, the Banks hadmuemiFHLB lines of $339.1 million based on FHLB limi At December 31, 2009,

the Banks pledged collateral totaling $237.6 millto support FHLB advances. At December 31, 26@%Banks had FHLB advances of
$176.5 million outstanding, with excess collatgrdged to the FHLB that would support additionatrbwings of approximately $61.0

million.

Lines of credit with the FRB are based on colldtpladged. The Banks have pledged certain hongage commercial, acquisition and
development, and lot loan portfolios under blarkst agreements as collateral to the FRB for tleeb@ances. At December 31, 2009 the
Banks had lines available with the FRB for $71.8iom. At December 31, 2009 the Banks had no FEzaaces outstanding, with excess
collateral pledged to the FRB that would suppodit@ehal borrowings of approximately $71.6 million.

The mortgage loan warehouse line of credit is aeresion of credit facility from a correspondent bam Crescent Mortgage with a $35.0
million credit limit, of which $15.9 million is stiavailable. The facility is secured by Creschturtgage’s residential mortgage loans held
for sale and other assets.

During 2008, the Company modified a $5.0 milliorsecured line of credit with a correspondent bahkylich $3.0 million is outstanding
at December 31, 2009, to be extended to March 820.2 In connection with this modification, the Quamny obtained a $3.0 million
subordinated debenture that, as a condition tditleeof credit modification, requires the Compaykeep at least a $500,000 principal
balance outstanding on the line of credit until $adordinated debenture is paid in full. If thenfany does not maintain the $500,000
balance, there is a $150,000 prepayment penaltyrin® 2009, the Company has maintained at leasbG0,$00 principal balance
outstanding on the line of credit. During 2008 ttorrespondent bank was put into receivership thie Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC"). As a result, the undrawn B#llion of availability under this unsecured liné aredit has been withdrawn by the
FDIC. The line of credit also has debt covenathis,more restrictive of which requires the Comptmgnaintain certain capital ratios and
return on asset ratios. As of December 31, 20489 Company is not in compliance with all of the eoants. While the lender has not
called the line of credit, it has the right to dm sAccordingly, the Company has developed altérestto replace this line of credit, if
necessary, by obtaining financing from other sasiroe by receiving dividends from its subsidiaries dccordance with regulatory
requirements to pay off the debt. As a result, agement does not believe that default of this canewill have a material adverse affect
on the Company’s financial condition or the resoftés operations.

Capital Resources

The Company and the Banks are subject to numesmugatory capital requirements administered by fddeanking agencies. If these
capital requirements are not met, regulators cé@mti@ certain mandatory — and possibly additiodacretionary — actions that, if
undertaken, could affect operations. Under capiiEiquacy guidelines and the regulatory framewaorlcérrective action, the Company
and the Banks must meet certain capital guideliwbgh involve quantitative measures of the Compmand the Banks’ assets, liabilities
and certain off-balance sheet items as calculabelruregulatory accounting practices. The Compaapd the Banks’ capital amounts
and classification are subject to qualitative juegis by the regulators about components, risk vigighand certain other factors.

Quantitative measures set up by regulation to guieeacapital adequacy require the Company and ané$Bto sustain minimum amounts
and ratios of Tier 1 capital and total risk basegitl to risk-weighted assets and Tier 1 capddbtal average assets. The Company and
the Banks are required to maintain minimum Tierapi@l and total risk based capital to risk weighéssets, and Tier 1 capital to total
average assets of 4%, 8%, and 3%, respectivelybeTaonsidered “Well Capitalized”, the Company #melBanks must maintain at least
Tier 1 capital and total risk based capital to rmslghted assets, and Tier 1 capital to total @yeessets of 6%, 10%, and 5%, respectively.
As of December 31, 2008, the Company and the Barksonsidered “Well Capitalized” under regulatoapital adequacy guidelines.
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The following schedule shows the Company’s andBidueks’ actual capital amounts and ratios at Decerdbge2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars In Thousands)

Carolina Financial Corporation

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 78,773 9.2% 71,208 8.4%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 101,696 11.9% 94,780 11.2%

Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 78,773 7.3% 71,208 6.4%
Community FirstBank

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 45,166 10.4% 36,590 8.9%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 55,633 12.8% 46,754 11.3%

Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 45,166 7.7% 36,590 6.6%
Crescent Bank

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 35,404 8.4% 33,806 8.1%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 47,849 11.4% 47,027 11.3%

Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 35,404 7.2% 33,806 6.3%

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

The following is a summary of recent authoritagprenouncements that could impact the accountinmrtig, and disclosure of financial
information by the Company.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardar@d“FASB”) issued guidance that restructured galhe accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and simplified access to alltharitative literature by providing a single soumeauthoritative nongovernmental
GAAP. The guidance is presented in a topicallyaaiged structure referred to as the FASB AccounBtamdards Codification (“ASC”).
The new structure is effective for interim or aninperiods ending after September 15, 2009. Alsgxg accounting standards have been
superseded and all other accounting literaturénottded are considered nonauthoritative.

The FASB issued new accounting guidance on acawgirfor transfer of financial assets in June 200Bhe guidance limits the
circumstances in which a financial asset shoulddyecognized when the transferor has not transfée entire financial asset by taking
into consideration the transferor's continuing itveanent. The standard requires that a transfemognize and initially measure at fair
value all assets obtained (including a transferbegeficial interest) and liabilities incurred asesult of a transfer of financial assets
accounted for as a sale. The concept of a quadjfgpecial-purpose entity is no longer applicabiée standard is effective for the first
annual reporting period that begins after Noveniigr2009, for interim periods within the first amhueporting period, and for interim
and annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlpgiaation is prohibited. The Company does noteetghe guidance to have any impact
on the Company’s financial statements. The ASCawvasnded in December 2009 to include this guidance.

In October 2009, updated guidance was issued teidgdor accounting and reporting for own-sharediag arrangements issued in
contemplation of a convertible debt issuance. h&tdate of issuance, a share-lending arrangemesredrinto on an entity’s own shares
should be measured at fair value in accordance pritr guidance and recognized as an issuancewitktan offset to additional paid-in
capital. Loaned shares are excluded from basicddnted earnings per share unless default of Heges-lending arrangement occurs.
The amendment also requires several disclosurisgding a description and the terms of the arranggraad the reason for entering into
the arrangement. The effective dates of the amentiare dependent upon the date the share-lendimggament was entered into and
include retrospective application for arrangementstanding as of the beginning of fiscal yearsrbegg on or after December 15, 2009.
The Company has no plans to issue convertible dablt therefore, does not expect the update to havempact on its financial
statements.

In January 2010, guidance was issued to allevigersity in the accounting for distributions to sélaolders that allowed the shareholder
to elect to receive their entire distribution irsbeor shares but with a limit on the aggregate armoficash to be paid. The amendment
states that the stock portion of the distributiorshareholders that allows them to elect to receash or shares with a potential limitation

on the total amount of cash that all shareholdarsetect to receive in the aggregate is considarslare issuance. The amendment is
effective for interim and annual periods endingoomfter December 15, 2009 and had no impact o€tmepany’s financial statements.

Also in January 2010, an amendment was issuedatdycthe scope of subsidiaries for consolidatiamgmses. The amendment provides
that the decrease in ownership guidance should/dappll) a subsidiary or group of assets thatlimisiness or a nonprofit activity, (2) a
subsidiary that is a business or nonprofit actitfitgt is transferred to an equity method investgeint venture, and (3) an exchange of a
group of assets that constitutes a business orrafihactivity for a noncontrolling interest in amtity. The guidance does not apply to a
decrease in ownership in transactions relatedl&s sd in-substance real estate or conveyancel @ @as mineral rights. The update is
effective for the interim or annual reporting peisoending on or after December 15, 2009 and hdchpact on the Company'’s financial
statements.
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
FINANCIAL DISCUSSION

Other accounting standards that have been issudtelfyASB or other standards-setting bodies arexmpécted to have a material impact
on the Company'’s financial position, results of r@piens or cash flows.

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with generally accepted acoauptinciples that require the
measurement of financial position and results afrapons in terms of historical dollars without s@eration of changes in the relative
purchasing power over time due to inflation.

Unlike many other industries, nearly all assets Bagilities of a financial institution are monegain nature. Therefore, interest rates
usually have a more significant impact on a finahaastitution’s performance than does the effectndation. Interest rates do not
necessarily move in the same direction or in theesanagnitude as the price of goods and servicez sinch prices are affected by
inflation. We are committed to continuing to aetivmanage the gap between our interest-sensiiset®iand interest-sensitive liabilities.
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing cash
Cash and cash equivalents
Securities available for sale (cost of $102,119 drabB72 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively)
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $105,450 $h@6,485 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respsgtivel
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost
Other investments
Derivative assets
Loans held for sale
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan loss&l8f032 and
$11,300 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Real estate acquired through foreclosure, net
Deferred tax assets, net
Prepaid FDIC insurance
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits
Total deposits
Short-term borrowed funds
Long-term debt
Derivative liabilities
Drafts outstanding
Advances from borrowers for insurance and taxes
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01; 200,000 shares authorized
no shares issued or outstanding at December 31, 2aE0a8
Common stock, par value $.01; 2,800,000 shares &etpf, 912,492 and 1,912,212
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 20@®@8gdrespectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings, restricted
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), netxof t
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial stzets
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2009 2008
(In Thousands)
$ 2,901 25,206
17,759 16,285
20,660 41,491
104,401 120,988
125,633 113,689
12,456 11,874
465 465
2,342 1,999
71,233 28,283
690,163 776,621
17,443 17,980
4,550 4,510
7,853 7,105
10,349 9,547
5,677 -
5,632 4,442
$ 1,078,757 1,138,994
$ 37,543 39,952
723,565 677,437
761,108 717,389
43,787 148,090
203,638 218,465
891 959
3,117 2,316
198 158
1,484 2,764
8,396 2,262
1,022,619 1,092,403
19 19
21,320 20,925
42,433 35,264
(7,634) (9,617)
56,138 46,591
$ 1,078,757 1,138,994




CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008ND 2007

Interest income
Loans
Debt securities
Dividends
Interest-bearing cash
Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits
Short-term borrowed funds
Long-term debt
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income
Net gain on sale of loans held for sale
Deposit service charges
Income from ATM and debit card transactions
Income from sales of non-depository products
Net loss on extinguishment of debt
Net gain on sale of available for sale securities
Net loss on other investments
Net gain (loss) on sale of real estate acquiremlithir foreclosure
Net gain (loss) on derivatives
Other
Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Marketing and public relations
FDIC insurance
Expense from ATM and debit card transactions
Other real estate expense
Mortgage loan repurchase losses
Other
Total noninterest expense

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net incom:

Earnings per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Average common shares outstanding:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatesnents.
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200¢

2008

2007

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

43,89: 49,516 60,954
12,78¢ 12,660 3,823
39 466 481
19 407 314
56,736 63,049 65,572
17,78: 24,036 28,995
1,361 1,998 1,760
5,877 7,193 6,530
25,01 33,227 37,285
31,71 29,822 28,287
10,46( 6,361 1,775
21,25, 23,461 26,512
23,98: 4,579 6,466
1,58¢ 1,449 1,075
32C 308 270
78¢ 867 57
(711) (52) -
962 952 477
- (337) -
(26) (55) 35
411 1,139 (13)
627 377 502
27,93t 9,227 8,869
20,18: 14,497 14,121
3,41¢ 3,011 2,737
63C 655 658
2,201 617 466
281 276 227
1,84% 5 -
3,362 285 -
5,761 4,536 4,092
37,67¢ 23,882 22,301
11,52: 8,806 13,080
4,35: 3,256 4,806
7,16¢ 5,55( 8,27¢
3.7¢ 2.95 4.61
3.72 2.83 4.23
1,912,44 1,883,10 1,794,65
1,924,720 1,960,362 1,954,392




CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L0OS9
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008ND 2007

Balance, December 31, 2006
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense, net

Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax of $276
Reclassification adjustment for gains included
in net income, net of tax of $174

Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income
Balance, December 31, 2007
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense, net

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized loss on securities, net of tax of $5,234
Reclassification adjustment for gains included
in net income, net of tax of $343

Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss
Balance, December 31, 2008
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense, net

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax of $1,583
Reclassification adjustment for gains included
in net income, net of tax of $366

Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income

Balance, December 31, 2(

See accompanying nhotes to consolidated financiatetents.

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Retained = Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(In Thousands, Except Shares Data)
1,790,862 $ 18 19,291 21,440 (90) 40,659
7,400 - 111 - - 111
- - 315 - - 315
) - - 8,274 - 8,274
- - - - 479
- - - - (303)
176 176
8,450
1,798,262 18 19,717 29,714 86 49,535
103,950 1 843 - - 844
10,000 - 365 - - 365
- - - 5,550 - 5,550
- - - - (9,094)
- - - - (609)
(9,703) (9,703)
(4,153)
1,912,212 19 20,925 35,264 (9,617) 46,591
280 - 5 - - 5
- - 390 - - 390
- - - 7,169 - 7,169
- - - - 2,580
- - - - (597)
1,98: 1,98¢
9,15:
1,912,49 $ 16 21,32 42,43: (7,634 56,13¢
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOwS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008ND 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashiged by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses
Deferred tax benefit
Amortization of unearned discount/premiums on itmesits, net
Amortization of deferred loan fees
Gain on sale of available for sale securities
Loss on write off of other investments
Gain on sale of loans held for sale
Originations of loans held for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale
Loss on extinquishment of debt
Loss (gain) on derivatives
Stock-based compensation
Depreciation
Loss on disposals of premises and equipment
Loss (gain) on sale of real estate acquired thréargiclosure
Write-down of real estate acquired through foredies
Decrease (increase) in:

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets
Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Activity in available-for-sale securities:
Purchases
Maturities, payments and calls
Sales
Activity in held-to-maturity securities:
Purchases
Maturities, payments and calls
Increase in Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Decrease in other investments
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable, net
Purchase of premises and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired thrfmrgblosure
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposit accounts
Net (decrease) increase in Federal Home Loan Bhrdoaes
Net (decrease) increase in Federal Reserve Baakeely
Net increase (decrease) in other short-term boddweds
Procceds from issuance of TLGP debt
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt
Net increase (decrease) in drafts outstanding
Net increase in advances from borrowers for ina@amd taxes
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equssalent

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
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2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)
$ 7,169 5,550 8,274
10,460 6,361 1,775
(2,019) (633) (869)
(128) (212) (76)
(604) (831) (1,303)
(963) (952) 477)
- 337 -
(23,982) (4,579) (6,466)
(1,700,377) (712,784) (949,068)
1,681,410 714,110 960,893
711 52 -
(411) (1,139) 13
390 365 315
1,254 1,265 1,169
59 20 1
26 55 (35)
1,495 - -
(39) 936 18
(6,862) 419 259
(1,279) (420) 1,723
6,133 (465) (1,239)
(27,557) 7,455 14,907
(64,365) (175,843) (123,677)
23,759 20,229 6,309
29,054 64,996 18,834
(4,052) (3,585) -
24,632 2,829 -
(583) 1,727) (4,458)
- - 48
68,092 (50,969) (78,320)
(807) (1,104) (2,158)
32 68 -
6,238 636 1,075
82,000 (144,470) (182,347)
43,719 25,289 69,644
(47,211) 29,199 95,200
(91,000) 91,000 -
(2,029) 19,737 2,786
20,400 - -
- 3,000 -
802 (3,390) (5,792)
40 11 15
5 844 111
(75,274) 165,690 161,964
(20,831) 28,675 (5,476)
41,491 12,816 18,292
$ 20,660 41,491 12,816
Continued



CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOwS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008ND 2007

Supplemental disclosure
Cash paid for:
Interest on deposits and borrowed ft
Income taxes paid, net of reful

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Transfer of loans held for sale to loans recei\
Transfer of loans receivable to real estate acduireugh foreclosu
Transfer of available for sale securities to heldnaturity securitie
Unrealized gain (loss) in securities availabledale, ne

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiateinents.
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2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)

26,29¢ 33,64 35,56:
3,66¢ 4,05( 6,80(
- - 60
8,501 7,52¢ 66€

30,59° 112,34: -
2,58( (9,094 47¢




CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Carolina Financial Corporation (“Carolina Finantiat the “Company”), incorporated under the lawsié State of Delaware, is a multi-

bank holding company with two wholly owned subsididanks, Community FirstBank of Charleston (“Conmity FirstBank”) and
Crescent Bank (together, the “Banks”), and one lyhmlvned service corporation, Carolina Servicespoaation of Charleston (“Carolina
Services”). Effective July 27, 2009, Carolina Fioiah contributed 100% of its wholly owned mortgagigbsidiary Crescent Mortgage
Company (“Crescent Mortgage”) to Community FirstBaThe consolidated financial statements inclimeaccounts of the Company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, Community FirstBafkkescent Bank and Carolina Services. In congididaall material intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminatece r&ults of operations of the businesses acquirddansactions accounted for as
purchases are included only from the dates of a@epn. All majority-owned subsidiaries are corndated unless control is temporary or
does not rest with the Company.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, statutory busimessst(“Trusts”) created by the Company had outstentrust preferred securities with
an aggregate par value of $15,000,000. The p@heigsets of the Trusts are $15,465,000 of the @owip subordinated debentures with
identical rates of interest and maturities as thsttpreferred securities. The Trusts have issk485,000 of common securities to the
Company and are included in other investments & abcompanying consolidated balance sheets. TastsTare not consolidated
subsidiaries of the Company.

Management'’s Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordastbegenerally accepted accounting principleshie United States of America which
require management to make estimates and assumphianaffect the reported amounts of assets abdities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as of the date of the fil@mgtatements and the reported amounts of reveanédsexpenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from thoséraates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceetiblsignificant change in the near term relatia¢odetermination of the allowance for loan
losses, including valuation for impaired loans, tatiation of real estate acquired in connectioti fiareclosure or in satisfaction of loans,
the valuation of securities, the valuation of dative instruments, the valuation of mortgage sémgiaights, the determination of the

reserve for mortgage loan repurchase losses, dedelttax assets or liabilities. In connectiottvthe determination of the allowance for
loan losses and foreclosed real estate, manageshtainhs independent appraisals for significant prijgs. Management must also make
estimates in determining the estimated useful lares methods for depreciating premises and equipmen

While management uses available information togeize losses on loans and foreclosed real estdteefadditions to the allowance may
be necessary based on changes in local economilitioos. In addition, regulatory agencies, as rtegral part of their examination
process, periodically review the Banks’ allowanéasloan losses and foreclosed real estate. Sgehcées may require the Bank to
recognize additions to the allowances based om thdgments about information available to thenthat time of their examination.
Because of these factors, it is reasonably postiblethe allowances for loan losses and foreclosallestate may change materially in the
near term.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent events are events or transactionsdbat after the balance sheet date but before finhsmtements are issued. Recognized

subsequent events are events or transactionsrihate additional evidence about conditions thastexl at the date of the balance sheet,
including the estimates inherent in the procesgreparing financial statements. Nonrecognized equent events are events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist atdhte of the balance sheet but arose after that dstlanagement has reviewed events
occurring through March 5, 2010, the date the fairstatements were available to be issued amslbhsequent events occurred requiring
accrual or disclosure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash anfiaindanks and interest-bearing cash with bankgstntially all of the interest-bearing
cash at December 31, 2009 and 2008 is Federal Hoeue Bank overnight deposits. Cash and cash elgmitsgahave maturities of three
months or less. Accordingly, the carrying amouhsuach instruments is considered a reasonable &stiof fair value. The Banks are
required to maintain average balances on handtbrthve Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 20@92008, these reserve balances
amounted to $1,259,000 and $1,736,000, respectively

Securities

Investment securities are classified into threegates: (a) Held to Maturity — debt securitieattthe Company has positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity, which are reportedaahortized cost; (b) Trading — debt and equity séesrthat are bought and held principally

for the purpose of selling them in the near termic are reported at fair value, with unrealizethgand losses included in earnings; and
(c) Available for Sale — debt and equity securittest may be sold under certain conditions, whighraported at fair value, with unrealized

gains and losses excluded from earnings and reprt@ccumulated other comprehensive income aparate component of stockholders’

equity, net of income taxes.
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

The Company determines investment and mortgageebasicurities classification at the time of purehal$ a security is transferred from
available for sale to held to maturity, the faitueat the time of transfer becomes the held taritgtsecurity’s new cost basis. Premiums
and discounts on securities are accreted and amodriis an adjustment to interest yield over thinagtd life of the security using a
method which approximates a level yield. Dividerasl interest income are recognized when earneaatedlized losses on securities,
reflecting a decline in value judged by the Comptmype other than temporary, are charged to inconthe consolidated statements of
operations.

The cost basis of securities sold is determinespegific identification. Purchases and sales ofisges are recorded on a trade date basis.

Loans Held for Sale

The Company'’s residential mortgage lending acésifior sale in the secondary market are comprisada@pting residential mortgage loan
applications, qualifying borrowers to standardslglished by investors, funding residential mortglmas and selling mortgage loans to
investors under pre-existing commitments. Fundsiblential mortgages held for sale to investorsreperted at the lower of aggregate
cost or estimated fair value. Net unrealized Issgany, are recognized in a valuation allowabgeharges to operations. Gains or losses
realized on the sales of loans are recognizededtirtie of sale and are determined by the differdretereen the net sales proceeds and the
carrying value of the loans sold, adjusted for aagvicing asset or liability retained. Gains aossks on sales of loans are included in
noninterest income.

The Company issues rate lock commitments to bom®we prices quoted by secondary market invest@srivatives related to these
commitments are recorded as either assets oritiediin the balance sheet and are measured atdhie. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are reported in current earnings oemttomprehensive income depending on the purpasetich the derivative is held and
whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accaoxmti The Company does not currently engage in atiyittes that qualify for hedge
accounting. Accordingly, changes in fair valuestlgse derivative instruments are included in ntené@st income in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Loans Receivable, Net

Loans that management has the intent and abilibold for the foreseeable future are reported eit thutstanding principal balances net
of any unearned income, charge-offs, deferred éeesosts on originated loans and unamortized premior discounts on purchased
loans. The net amount of nonrefundable loan ortgingees, commitment fees and certain direct cass®ciated with the lending process
are deferred and amortized to interest income tlvercontractual lives of the loans using method&kviapproximate a level yield.
Discounts and premiums on purchased loans are i@ewrto interest income over the estimated lifehef loans using methods that
approximate a level yield. Commercial loans andstaritially all installment loans accrue interestio& unpaid balance of the loans.

A loan is impaired when, based on current infororatind events, it is probable that the Companyheillnable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan egent. Impaired loans are measured based on therprealue of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective intereger or as a practical expedient, at the loan’smiable market price or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. Wlilee fair value of the impaired loan is less thi@mrecorded investment in the loan, the
impairment is recorded through a specific resefiazation that is a component of the allowanceléan losses. A loan is charged-off
against the allowance for loan losses when all ingdul collection efforts have been exhausted dwdldan is viewed as uncollectible in
the immediate or foreseeable future.

Loan origination and commitment fees, net of relatests are amortized in interest income over trgractual life of the loan using a
method that approximates the level yield methoflsadd for prepayments, or noninterest income vwtheroan is sold.

Mortgage Servicing Rights, Fees and Costs

The Company initially measures servicing assets |mtilities retained related to the sale of residd loans held for sale (“mortgage
servicing rights”) at fair value, if practicabl€or subsequent measurement purposes, the Compasyres servicing assets and liabilities
based on the lower of cost or market.

Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in promortto, and over the period of, estimated net senyimcome. The amortization of the
mortgage servicing rights is analyzed periodicahy is adjusted to reflect changes in prepaymées end other estimates.

The Company evaluates potential impairment of nawgservicing rights based on the difference betwee carrying amount and current
estimated fair value of the servicing rights. Btetmining impairment, the Company aggregateseallicng rights and stratifies them into
tranches based on predominant risk characteristicgerest rate, loan type and investor typeimifairment exists, a valuation allowance is
established for any excess of amortized cost dwectirrent estimated fair value by a charge tonmeo If the Company later determines
that all or a portion of the impairment no longgises for a particular tranche, a reduction of #filewance may be recorded as an increase
to income.

Service fee income is recorded for fees earneddpricing mortgage loans under servicing agreemeititsthe Federal National Mortgage
Association (“FNMA”), the Federal Home Loan Mortga@orporation (“FHLMC”") and certain private investo The fees are based on a
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CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

contractual percentage of the outstanding princlglnce of the loans serviced and are recordethcasne when received. The
amortization of mortgage servicing rights is netigdinst loan servicing fee income. Mortgage sergicosts are charged to expense when
incurred.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include loans on which inteiesiot being accrued, accruing loans that ared&gs or more delinquent and
foreclosed property. Foreclosed property consiktea estate and other assets acquired as a oésulborrower’s loan default. Loans are
generally placed on nonaccrual status when coredsts that principal or interest is not fully agdtible, or when any portion of principal
or interest becomes 90 days past due, whicheversdicst. Loans past due 90 days or more may mremiaccrual status if management
determines that concern over the collectibilityppincipal and interest is not significant. Whenrisaare placed on nonaccrual status,
interest receivable is reversed against interesiie in the current period. Interest payments vecethereafter are applied as a reduction
to the remaining principal balance as long as aconexists as to the ultimate collection of the pial. Loans are removed from
nonaccrual status when they become current asttofsmcipal and interest and when concern no lorgésts as to the collectibility of
principal or interest.

Assets acquired as a result of foreclosure aréechat the lower of cost or fair value less estadagelling costs. If cost exceeds fair value
less estimated selling costs at the time of foale, the asset is written down to fair value Estgmated selling costs with the difference
being charged against the allowance for loan logsesaerally, such properties are appraised annuatlg the carrying value, if greater
than the fair value less estimated selling costadjusted with a charge to noninterest expensatifRomaintenance costs and declines in
market value are included in noninterest expenségdins or losses on sale are included in nor@sténcome.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is Management's eséirof probable credit losses inherent in the loantfolio at the balance sheet date.
Management determines the allowance based on aingngvaluation. This evaluation is inherently salive because it requires material
estimates and is based on evaluations of the tbilég of loans. Impaired loans, including nomragal loans, loans past due 90 or more
days and still accruing, troubled-debt restructuoaths, and loans in excess of a defined thredihaldare not paying in accordance with
contractual terms, are evaluated for specific impant. The specific reserves are determined onaa-by-loan basis based on
Management’s evaluation of the Company’s exposoreeéich credit, given the current payment statuh@floan and the value of any
underlying collateral. Management’'s estimate ofséssin the remainder of the portfolio is based ertam observable data that
Management believes are most reflective of the dyidg credit losses being estimated. This evabmincludes credit quality trends;
collateral values; portfolio aging; loan volumegographic, borrower and industry concentrationaseeing of the loan portfolio; the
findings of internal credit quality assessments @sdillts from external bank regulatory examinations

While Management uses the best information avaléblestablish the allowance for loan losses, &uagjustments to the allowance may
be necessary if economic conditions differ subgintfrom the assumptions used in making the Viédue or, if required by regulators,
based upon information available to them at the tohtheir examinations. Such adjustments to ocalgastimates, as necessary, are made
in the period in which these factors and othenaahé considerations indicate that loss levels nay from previous estimates.

Guarantees

Standby letters of credit obligate the Company &entertain financial obligations of its customemsgder the contractual terms of the
agreement, if the customers are unable to do symBnt is only guaranteed under these lettersedfitcupon the borrower’s failure to
perform its obligations to the beneficiary. Thengmany can seek recovery of the amounts paid frenbtinrower; however, these standby
letters of credit are generally not collateraliz&bmmitments under standby letters of credit areally one year or less. At December 31,
2009, the Company had recorded no liability for ¢herent carrying amount of the obligation to perfcas a guarantor; as such amounts
are not considered material. The maximum potemmbunt of undiscounted future payments relatedtandby letters of credit at
December 31, 2009 was $910,000.

Premises and Equipment, Net

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmalated depreciation. Depreciation is computedgiiie straight-line method over the
asset’s estimated useful life. Estimated livesggeanp to forty years for buildings and improvemesmsl up to ten years for furniture,

fixtures and equipment. Maintenance and repagsharged to expense as incurred. Improvement®xiend the lives of the respective
assets are capitalized. When property or equiptisesold or otherwise disposed of, the cost anatedl accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts and the negigtin or loss is reflected in income.

Advertising
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is based upon incbefere taxes for financial statement purposessteljl for nontaxable income and
nondeductible expenses. Deferred income taxes bege provided when different accounting methodsHaeen used in determining
income for income tax purposes and for financipbréng purposes. Deferred tax assets and liaslitire recognized based on future tax
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consequences attributable to differences arisio fihe financial statement carrying values of asaet liabilities and their tax bases. In
the event of changes in the tax laws, deferrecsaets and liabilities are adjusted in the perfati@enactment of those changes, with the
cumulative effects included in the current yeansome tax provision.

Positions taken by the Company’s tax returns maguligect to challenge by the taxing authoritiesrupgamination. The benefit of

uncertain tax positions are initially recognizedhe financial statements only when it is morelfikban not the position will be sustained
upon examination by the tax authorities. Suchpesitions are both initially and subsequently meadwas the largest amount of tax
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of beinglied upon settlement with the tax authority, assg full knowledge of the position and

all relevant facts. The Company believes thaniteme tax filing positions taken or expected tdddesn in its tax returns will more likely

than not be sustained upon audit by the taxingaaitibs and does not anticipate any adjustmentswiiaresult in a material adverse

impact on the Company’s financial condition, reswf operations, or cash flow. Therefore, no neseffor uncertain tax positions have
been recorded.

Interest and penalties on income tax uncertaitiesclassified within income tax expense in theme statement. The Company had no
interest or penalties during fiscal 2009, 2008 20d7.

Drafts Outstanding
The Company invests excess funds on deposit at bteks (including amounts on deposit for payménouistanding disbursement
checks) on a daily basis in an overnight interestrimg account. Accordingly, outstanding checksraported as a liability.

Reserve for Mortgage Loan Repurchase Losses

The Company sells mortgage loans to various thadigs, including government-sponsored entitieglearcontractual provisions that
include various representations and warranties tiipatally cover ownership of the loan, complianeith loan criteria set forth in the
applicable agreement, validity of the lien secutiing loan, absence of delinquent taxes or liensagthe property securing the loan, and
similar matters. The Company may be required pomehase the mortgage loans with identified deféstemnify the investor or insurer,
or reimburse the investor for credit loss incurd the loan (collectively “repurchase”) in the everi a material breach of such
contractual representations or warranties. Rislo@ated with potential repurchases or other foofsettlement is managed through
underwriting and quality assurance practices anseoyicing mortgage loans to meet investor andretsny market standards.

The Company establishes mortgage repurchase resezlaed to various representations and warrarhies reflect management’s
estimate of losses based on a combination of fact@uch factors incorporate estimated levels &ate on internal quality assurance,
default expectations, historical investor repurehdemand and appeals success rates, reimbursegnentrbspondent and other third
party originators, and projected loss severity.e Tompany establishes a reserve at the time laansokd and continually updates the
reserve estimate during the estimated loan liftie Teserve for repurchases, included in Accruectresgs and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of finanoiadlition, was $3.0 million at December 31, 2009 $h83,000 at December 31, 2008.

To the extent that economic conditions and the ingusiarket do not recover or future investor repase demand and appeals success
rates differ from past experience, the Companycdaohtinue to have increased demands and incrdasgedeverities on repurchases,
causing future additions to the repurchase reserve.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted feakes, when control over the assets has been dersgh Control over transferred assets is
deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets banedplated from the Company, (2) the transfebgains the right (free of conditions
that constrain it from taking advantage of thahtjgo pledge or exchange the transferred assats(3) the Company does not maintain
effective control over the transferred assets thincan agreement to repurchase them before theirityat

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income andungetalized gains (losses) on securities and isepted in the consolidated
statements of changes in stockholders’ equity amdpcehensive income. The Company’'s other compsierincome for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and acdachwiher comprehensive income as of December@®1 and 2008 are comprised
solely of unrealized gains (losses) on certainstvent securities.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangredtinto off-balance-sheet financial instrumermtssisting of commitments to extend
credit, commitments under revolving credit agreersieand standby letters of credit. Such finan@iatruments are recorded in the
financial statements when they are funded.

Stock-Based Compensation
At December 31, 2009, the Company had three staskd payment plans for directors, officers androkey employees, which are
described below.
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The fair value at the date of grant of the stockiampis estimated using the Black-Scholes optianipg model based on assumptions
noted in a table below. The dividend yield is basedstimated future dividend yields. The risk-frate for periods within the contractual
term of the share option is based on the U.S. Trgageld curve in effect at the time of grant. Exfed volatilities are generally based on
historical volatilities. The expected term of shapions granted is generally derived from his@lriexperience. Compensation expense is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the sioufion vesting period. The expense recognition rapleyee awards resulted in net
expense of approximately $390,000, $365,000 and,$80 during the twelve months ended December 80922008 and 2007,
respectively.

The Company adopted the 2006 Recognition and Reteflan under which an aggregate of 60,000 shiaage been reserved for

issuance by the Company upon the grant of non-¢estenmon stock. The plan provides for the granstotk to key employees and

Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. fitie-vested common stock vests ratably over ayfear-period. During 2008, 10,000

shares of non-vested common stock of the Compang granted to a key employee of the Company at5$3Jer share. As of December

31, 2009, 50,000 shares have been awarded undplatieof which 26,000 shares have vested. At Béee 31, 2009, 24,000 shares are
unvested.

Additionally, the Company has adopted the 1998 IS@ption Plan and the 2002 Stock Option Plan umdg@ch an aggregate of 7,590
shares and 138,750 shares, respectively, haverbserved for issuance by the Company upon the gfastock options or limited rights.
The plans provide for the grant of options to kaypkyees and Directors as determined by a Stoclo@@ommittee. The options vest
ratably over a five-year period and have a ten-yeamn, both of which begin at the date of granhe Bggregate options available and the
option exercise prices have been adjusted to teffecissuance of a 15% stock dividend during 1888 the issuance of a 10% stock
dividend during 2000.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stockaspplans at December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 zamgels during the years then
ended is presented below:

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 145,760 $ 15.86 249,990 $ 12.67 257,590 $ 12.74

Granted - - - - - -
Exercised (280) 17.57 (103,950) 8.12 (7,400) 15.00
Forfeited or expired (500) 24.00 (280) 38.50 (200) 15.00
Outstanding at end of year 144980 $ 15.83 145,760 $ 15.86 249990 $ 12.67
Options exercisable at end of year 142920 $ 15.63 141,050 $ 15.49 242,450 $ 12.23

The following table summarizes information abow éptions outstanding at December 31, 2009:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Avg. Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Years Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price @tanding Exercise Price

$ 15.00 to $20.00 137,090 24 $ 15.15 137,090 $ 15.15
$ 20.00 to $25.00 5,840 55 24.00 4,600 24.00
$ 35.00 to $40.00 2,050 6.8 38.50 1,230 38.50
144,980 2.6 $ 15.83 142,920 $ 15.63

There were no options granted during the yearscebdeember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. The totahsitr value of options exercised
during the twelve months ended December 31, 20088 2nd 2007 was $2,000, $246,000, and $32,0Q8ectegely.

Fair values have been retroactively restated fostatk dividends since the date the option wastgth As of December 31, 2009, there
was approximately $751,000 of total unrecognizechmensation cost related to nonvested share-basegersation arrangements.
Unrecognized cost is projected to be recognized aweeighted average period of approximately twarge

The Company generally issues authorized but prelyainissued shares to satisfy option exercises.
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Reclassification
Certain reclassifications of accounts reported fagvious periods have been made in these consafidaiancial statements. Such
reclassifications had no effect on stockholdersiitgcpr the net income as previously reported.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
The following is a summary of recent authoritagprenouncements that could impact the accountimmrtimg, and disclosure of financial
information by the Company.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardar@q“FASB”) issued guidance that restructured galhe accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and simplified access to alltharitative literature by providing a single soumeauthoritative nongovernmental
GAAP. The guidance is presented in a topicallyaaiged structure referred to as the FASB AccounBtamdards Codification (“ASC”).
The new structure is effective for interim or annperiods ending after September 15, 2009. Als#xg accounting standards have been
superseded and all other accounting literaturendoided is considered nonauthoritative.

The FASB issued new accounting guidance on acawyrfor transfer of financial assets in June 200Bhe guidance limits the
circumstances in which a financial asset shoulddrecognized when the transferor has not transféhes entire financial asset by taking
into consideration the transferor's continuing itveanent. The standard requires that a transfemognize and initially measure at fair
value all assets obtained (including a transferbeaeficial interest) and liabilities incurred asesult of a transfer of financial assets
accounted for as a sale. The concept of a quatjfgpecial-purpose entity is no longer applicablée standard is effective for the first
annual reporting period that begins after Novenitigr2009, for interim periods within the first amhueporting period, and for interim
and annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlpgaiaation is prohibited. The Company does noteetghe guidance to have any impact
on the Company’s financial statements. The ASCavasnded in December 2009 to include this guidance.

In October 2009, updated guidance was issued teidedor accounting and reporting for own-sharediag arrangements issued in
contemplation of a convertible debt issuance. h&tdate of issuance, a share-lending arrangemésredrinto on an entity’'s own shares
should be measured at fair value in accordance pritr guidance and recognized as an issuancewibBtan offset to additional paid-in
capital. Loaned shares are excluded from basicddnted earnings per share unless default of Heges-lending arrangement occurs.
The amendment also requires several disclosuregding a description and the terms of the arrangeraed the reason for entering into
the arrangement. The effective dates of the amentare dependent upon the date the share-lendiaggament was entered into and
include retrospective application for arrangementtstanding as of the beginning of fiscal yearsrbegg on or after December 15, 2009.
The Company has no plans to issue convertible dabt therefore, does not expect the update to havempact on its financial
statements.

In January 2010, guidance was issued to allevigersity in the accounting for distributions to sélaolders that allowed the shareholder
to elect to receive their entire distribution irsbar shares but with a limit on the aggregate arnoficash to be paid. The amendment
states that the stock portion of the distributiorshareholders that allows them to elect to receash or shares with a potential limitation
on the total amount of cash that all shareholdarsedect to receive in the aggregate is considarslare issuance. The amendment is
effective for interim and annual periods endingoorfter December 15, 2009 and had no impact o€tmepany’s financial statements.

Also in January 2010, an amendment was issuedatycthe scope of subsidiaries for consolidatiamgmses. The amendment provides
that the decrease in ownership guidance should/appll) a subsidiary or group of assets thatlimisiness or a nonprofit activity, (2) a
subsidiary that is a business or nonprofit actittitt is transferred to an equity method investgeint venture, and (3) an exchange of a
group of assets that constitutes a business orrafinactivity for a noncontrolling interest in amtity. The guidance does not apply to a
decrease in ownership in transactions relatedl&s €4 in-substance real estate or conveyancel @ @as mineral rights. The update is
effective for the interim or annual reporting pelsoending on or after December 15, 2009 and hachpact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issudtellyASB or other standards-setting bodies arexmpécted to have a material impact
on the Company'’s financial position, results of gpiens or cash flows.

Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal course of its business, the Comparmpunters two significant types of risks: economma regulatory. There are three
main components of economic risk: interest ratk, reredit risk, and market risk. The Companyuikject to interest rate risk to the
degree that its interest-bearing liabilities matoireeprice at different speeds, or on a diffetatis, than its interest-earning assets. Credit
risk is the risk of default on the loan portfolio certain securities that results from borrowerghility or unwillingness to make
contractually required payments. Market risk relechanges in the value of collateral underlyioank receivable and the valuation of
real estate held by the Company.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varignvernmental agencies. These regulations cardarghange significantly from
period to period. Periodic examinations by theulatpry agencies may subject the Company to furth@nges with respect to asset
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valuations, amounts of required loss allowancesagadating restrictions from the regulators’ judgisebased on information available to
them at the time of their examination.

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, grossalized losses and fair value of investmentsri@siavailable for sale and held to
maturity at December 31, 2009 and 2008 follows:

2009 2008
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities available for sale: (In Thousands)
GNMA $ 4,088 29 - 4,117 - - - -
Mortgage-backed securities 98,031 2,661 (408) 100,284 108,565 1,252 (2,345) 107,472
Asset-backed securities - - - - 17,307 - (3,791) 13,516

Total securities available for sale $ 102,119 2,690 (408) 104,401 125,872 1,252 (6,136) 120,988
Securities held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 111,660 1,144 (13,552) 99,252 111,940 918 (8,062) 104,796
Asset-backed securities 13,973 - (7,775) 6,198 1,749 - (60) 1,689

Total securities held to maturity  $ 125,633 1,144 (21,327) 105,450 113,689 918 (8,122) 106,485

The amortized cost and fair value of debt secsritig contractual maturity at December 31, 200Dved!:

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In Thousands)
Securities available for sale:

One year to five years $ 4,135 4,137
Six to ten years 3,358 3,448
After ten years 94,626 96,816
Total $ 102,119 104,401
Securities held to maturity:

Six to ten years $ 404 415
After ten years 125,229 105,035
Total $ 125,633 105,450

The contractual maturity dates of the securities wsed for mortgage-backed securities and asskethaecurities. No estimates were
made to anticipate principal repayments.

The gross unrealized losses and fair value of tragainy’s investments available for sale with urizedl losses that are not deemed to be

other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by stwent category and length of time that individsedurities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, at December 31, 200&sarfellows:
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Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Amortized Fair Unrealized  Amortized Fair Unrealized  Amort ized Fair Unrealized
Cost Value Losses Cost Value Losses Cost Value Losses

Securities available for sale: (In Thousands)
Mortgage-backed

securities $ 19,847 19,451 (396) 2,531 2,519 (12) 22,378 21,970 (408)
Securities held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed

securities $ 23,228 18,146 (5,082) 70,489 62,019 (8,470) 93,717 80,165 (13,552)
Asset-backed securities - - - 13,973 6,198 (7,775) 13,973 6,198 (7,775)

Total $ 23,228 18,146 (5,082) 84,462 68,217 (16,245) 107,690 86,363 (21,327)

The gross unrealized losses and fair value of th@p&any’s investments available for sale and helchaturity with unrealized losses that
are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily imga@ggregated by investment category and lengthmef that individual securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position,etenber 31, 2008 are as follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Amortized Fair Unrealized Amortized Fair Unrealized Arized Fair Unrealized
Cost Value Losses Cost Value Losses Cost Value Losses

Securities available for sale: (In Thousands)
Mortgage-backed

securities $ 10,306 9,913 (393) 27,230 25,278 (1,952) 37,536 35,191 (2,345)
Asset-backed securities 6,011 4,899 (1,112) 10,288 7,609 (2,679) 16,299 12,508 (3,791)

Total $ 16,317 14,812 (1,505) 37,518 32,887 (4,631) 53,835 47,699 (6,136)
Securities held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed

securities $ 62535 55,195 (7,340) 27,666 26,944 (722) 90,201 82,139 (8,062)
Asset-backed securities - - - 1,749 1,689 (60) 1,749 1,689 (60)

Total $ 62535 55,195 (7,340) 29,415 28,633 (782) 91,950 83,828 (8,122)

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company hadnti442, respectively, individual investments avd#afor sale that were in an
unrealized loss position. The unrealized losseshenCompany’s investments in mortgage-backed gexsuand asset-backed securities
summarized above were attributable primarily toditrquality, credit rating changes and liquiditfanagement has performed various
analyses, including cash flows, and believes that gecurities are not other-than-temporarily ingghiat December 31, 2009. The
Company does not intend to sell these securitidstas more likely than not that the Company witit be required to sell these securities
before recovery of their amortized cost.

The Banks, as members of the Federal Home Loan B&tk_B") of Atlanta, are required to own capitdabsk in the FHLB of Atlanta

based generally upon a membership-based requireanenan activity based requirement. FHLB capitatlsis pledged to secure FHLB
advances. No secondary market exists for thisksted it has no quoted market price. However, mgat®n through the FHLB of this
stock has historically been at par value. The Caomjs investment in FHLB capital stock was $12.8liam and $11.9 million at

December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Other investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008isted of $465,000 invested in capital stock afustety business trusts (See Note 10 —
Long-term debt).

NOTE 3 — DERIVATIVES

The derivative positions of the Company at Decendde2009 and 2008 are as follows:

-33-



CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

2009 2008
Fair Notional Fair Notiona
Value Value Value Value
(In Thousands)
Derivative assets -
Mortgage loan interest rate lock commitments $ 428 46,588 1,999 222,994
Forward mortgage loan sales commitments 1,914 130,000 - -
$ 2,34z 1,999
Derivative liabilities -
Forward mortgage loan sales commitments $ 891 177,282 959 121,000
NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET
Loans receivable, net at December 31, 2009 and 2@08ummarized by category as follows:
2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Residential mortgage $ 53,094 57,682
Commercial mortgage 301,344 322,595
Construction mortgage 14,639 66,279
Commercial loans 284,889 312,099
Consumer loans 72,917 80,993
Total loans 726,883 839,648
Less
Undisbursed loans in process 23,230 51,000
Allowance for loan losses 13,032 11,300
Deferred fees, net 458 727
36,720 63,027
Loans receivable, net $ 690,163 776,621
The composition of gross loans outstanding, netnalisbursed amounts, by rate type is as follows:
2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Variable rate loans $ 456,128 583,103
Fixed rate loans 247,525 205,545
Total gross loans $ 703,653 788,648
Activity in the allowance for loan losses for theays ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as $ollow
2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 11,300 10,083 8,406
Provision for loan losses 10,460 6,361 1,775
Charge-offs (9,442) (5,190) (243)
Recoveries 714 46 145
Balance at end of year $ 13,032 11,300 10,083
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The following is a summary of information pertaigito impaired and nonaccrual loans at December 31:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $ 45,735 8,802
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 23,244 6,708
Total impaired loans $ 68,979 15,510
Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $ 3,827 1,180
Average of impaired loans during the year 44,393 19,932
Total nonaccrual loans 27,059 13,923
Total loans past due 90 days and still accruirgyest 771 13

Substantially all of the non-accrual loans, acqgumans 90 days or more delinquent and accruinggaiated loans for fiscal 2009 and
2008 are collateralized by real estate. Managerbeli¢ves based on information known and availableently, the probable losses
related to problem assets are adequately resenteeé allowance for loan losses.

The company recognized interest income of $4,000ar%&l $0 on loans that are past due 90 days dhdcstiuing during the year ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivelye dmpany had $8.9 million and $1.1 million of restured loans as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Loans serviced for the benefit of others under Iparticipation arrangements amounted to approxim&®2,443,000 and $35,112,000 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Activity in loans to officers, directors and othrefated parties for the years ended December 38 80d 2008 is summarized as follows:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 20,584 18,586
New loans 9,044 9,951
Repayments (8,271) (7,953)

Balance at end of year $ 21,357 20,584

In management’s opinion, related party loans arderan substantially the same terms, including @sterates and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactianth an unrelated person and generally do not wevohore than the normal risk of
collectibility.

In the normal course of business, to meet the &imgnneeds of its customers, the Company is a garfinancial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk. These financial instrumenttude commitments to extend credit and standbyrietof credit. These instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit imberest rate risk in excess of the amount receghin the balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eeémonperformance by the other party to the finahitistrument is represented by the
contractual amount of these instruments. The Compaes the same credit policies in making comnmitsiand conditional obligations as

it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to Endong as there is no violation of any conditestablished in the contract.

Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require payroémt fee. Since many of the

commitments may expire without being drawn upoe, ttital commitment amounts do not necessarily seprtefuture cash requirements.
The Company evaluates each customer’s creditwashkion a case-by-case basis. The amount of callatetained, if deemed necessary
by the Company upon extension of credit, is basethanagement’s credit evaluation.
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Premises and equipment, net at December 31, 2@DAGH8 consists of the following:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Land $ 5,040 5,040
Buildings 11,277 11,277
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 7,123 7,023
Construction in process 25 25

Total premises and equipment 23,465 23,365
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,022) (5,385)

Premises and equipment, net $ 17,443 17,980

Depreciation expense included in operating expefsabe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 adid &Mounted to $1.2 million, $1.3
million, and $1.2 million, respectively. There wasinterest capitalized during fiscal 2009 and&00

NOTE 6 — REAL ESTATE ACQUIRED THROUGH FORECLOSURE

Transactions in other real estate owned for thesyeaded December 31, 2009 and 2008 are summéeted:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $ 7,105 272
Additions 8,507 7,524
Sales (6,264) (691)
Write downs (1,495) -
Balance, end of year $ 7,853 7,105

NOTE 7 — MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not includetie accompanying statement of financial conditi The value of mortgage servicing
rights is included in other assets on the Compastdgement of financial condition. The unpaid pipal balances of loans serviced for
others were $282.5 million and $45.3 million, restpeely, at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The estimated fair values of mortgage servicingtsgvere $3.1 million and $250,000, respectivelyDecember 31, 2009 and 2008. The
estimated fair value of servicing rights at DecemB#&, 2009 were determined using discount rategimgnfrom 9.50% to 17.29%,
prepayment speed assumptions (“PSA”) ranging fr@8B3.to 423.6, depending upon the stratificatiothef specific right, and a weighted
average delinquency rate of 3.89% as determined thyrd party. The estimated fair value of senicrights at December 31, 2008 were
determined using discount rates ranging from 10t0%20.81%, prepayment speed assumptions (“PSA"yimgnfrom 194 to 1,455,
depending upon the stratification of the specifibt, and a weighted average delinquency rate28%.as determined by a third party.

The following summarizes the activity in mortgagewicing rights, along with the aggregate activitythe related valuation allowances, for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
MSR beginning balance $ 250 310
Amount capitalized 1,717 118
Amount amortized (275) (103)
Recovery (provision) for loss in fair value 105 (75)
MSR ending balance $ 1,797 250
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Activity in the allowance for loss in fair value mortgage servicing rights for the years ended Bee 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 105 30
Provision for loss in fair value - 75
Impairment recoveries (105) -
Balance at end of year $ - 105

The estimated amortization expense for mortgageicseg rights for the years ended December 31, 2@001, 2012, 2013, 2014 and
thereafter is $235,000, $215,000, $190,000, $165,8044,000 and $848,000, respectively. The esttnamortization expense is based
on current information regarding loan payments airgghayments. Amortization expense could chandetime periods based on changes in
the volume of prepayments and economic factors.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, servicing relatedt ttunds of approximately $401,000 and $489,066pectively, representing both

principal and interest due investors and escrowsived from borrowers, are on deposit in affiliatagst bank custodial accounts and are
included in noninterest-bearing deposits in theoagganying financial statements. At December 3D928nd 2008, the Company had
blanket bond coverage of $5.0 million and errord amissions coverage of $5.0 million.

NOTE 8 - DEPOSITS

Deposits outstanding by type of account at Decer@beP009 and 2008 are summarized as follows:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand accounts $ 37,543 39,952
Interest-bearing demand accounts 31,710 24,902
Savings accounts 2,824 2,252
Money market accounts 155,019 81,451
Certificates of deposit

1.00% to 2.99% 465,140 181,576

3.00% to 4.99% 67,389 385,464

5.00% to 7.99% 1,483 1,792
Total certificates of deposit 534,012 568,832

Total deposits $ 761,108 717,389

The aggregate amount of certificates of depositjuelng brokered deposits, with a minimum denoniératof $100,000 was $118.9
million and $141.3 million at December 31, 2009 &aD8, respectively. The aggregate amount of breukeertificates of deposit was
$115.7 million and $246.0 million at December 3002 and 2008, respectively.

The amounts and scheduled maturities of certificafeleposit at December 31, 2009 and 2008 arellas/é:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Maturing within one year $ 425,397 521,394
Maturing one through three years 105,422 46,633
Maturing after three years 3,193 805
$ 534,012 568,832

The Company has pledged $11.8 million of U.S. goremt agencies and corporations’ securities aveilfai sale as of December 31,
2009 to secure public agency funds.
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NOTE 9 — SHORT-TERM BORROWED FUNDS

Short-term borrowed funds at December 31, 2002808 are summarized as follows:

2009 2008
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(In Thousands)
Unsecured line of credit $ 3,000 4.75% 3,000 2.75%
Short-term FHLB advances 21,500 0.36%-2.715% 33,000 0.00% - 4.38%
Short-term FRB advances - - 91,000 0.50%
Mortgage loan warehouse line of credit 19,062 5.25%-8.50% 21,090 3.48%
Subordinated debenture, due 2020 225 2.75% - -
Total short-term borrowed funds $ 43,787 148,090

Lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan BankAdanta are based upon FHLB approved percentagé¥ank assets, but must be
supported by appropriate collateral to be available Banks have pledged approximately $177.8 amilffirst lien residential mortgage,
second lien residential mortgage, residential hemety line of credit, commercial mortgage and rifeuftily mortgage portfolios under a
blanket lien agreement as collateral to the FHLBtfi@se advances. In addition, the Company halgpte$59.8 million of securities for
these advances. At December 31, 2009, the Barmksnaaimum FHLB lines of $339.1 million based on Alimits. At December 31,
2009, the Banks pledged collateral totaling $23WiBion to support FHLB advances. At December 32009 the Banks had FHLB
advances of $176.5 million outstanding, with excesHateral pledged to the FHLB that would suppadditional borrowings of
approximately $61.0 million.

Lines of credit with the FRB are based on colldtptedged. The Banks pledged $139.9 million of -nwortgage commercial, acquisition
and development, and lot loan portfolios under kéatien agreements as collateral to the FRB fes¢hadvances. At December 31, 2009
the Banks had lines available with the FRB for $#illion. At December 31, 2009 the Banks had RBFRdvances outstanding.

The mortgage loan warehouse line of credit is aerescon of credit facility to Crescent Mortgage twit $35.0 million credit limit, of
which $15.9 million is still available. The fatijliis secured by certain Crescent Mortgage’s residiemortgage loans held for sale and its
other assets.

The Company has $3.0 million outstanding on an eursel line of credit with a correspondent banke Sete 10 — Long-Term Debt for
additional disclosure.

The Company has a subordinated debenture totaBr@rillion that has principal repayments beginnim@010. See Note 10 — Long-
Term Debt for additional disclosure.

In addition, the Banks had $11.2 million availabfeler federal funds purchase line agreements wittespondent banks.
NOTE 10 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008 anensuized as follows:

December 31, 2009

Balance Interest Rate
(In Thousands)
Long-term FHLB advances, due 2011 through 2021 $ 155,000 0.00% - 4.23%
TLGP, due 2012 20,398 2.74%
Subordinated debentures, due 2016 through 2020 12,775 1.78% - 2.75%
Subordinated debentures issued to Carolina FinaPeytal Trust |, due 2032 5,155 3.75%
Subordinated debentures issued to Carolina FinaPeytal Trust Il, due 2034 10,310 3.33%
Total long-term debt $ 203,638
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December 31, 2008

Balance Interest Rate
(In Thousands)
Long-term FHLB advances, due 2010 through 2021 $ 190,000 1.40% - 4.23%
Subordinated debentures, due 2016 through 2020 13,000 6.21% - 6.32%
Subordinated debentures issued to Carolina Find@ajital Trust |, due 2032 5,155 5.50%
Subordinated debentures issued to Carolina Find@agital Trust Il, due 2034 10,310 7.80%
Total long-term debt $ 218,465

As of December 31, 2009, the principal amounts @udong-term debt in 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 20dd thereafter were $0, $42.8
million, $43.2 million, $20.3 million, $5.3 milliorand $92.1 million, respectively. As of Decembd; 2009, the principal amounts
callable by the FHLB on advances in 2010, 201122@0D13, 2014 and thereafter were $12.5 millior§.@5million, $5.0 million, $5.0
million, and $0, respectively.

During 2009 the Company issued $20.4 million ofebtédness under the Federal Deposit Insurance @oigos (“FDIC”) Temporary
Liquidity Guarantee Program (“TLGP”). The FDIC gaatees the debt until its maturity in 2012.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, statutory busimassst(“Trusts”) created by the Company had outstantrust preferred securities with
an aggregate par value of $15.0 million. The tqustferred securities have floating interest ratasging from 5.50% to 7.80% at
December 31, 2009 and maturities ranging from Déeen31, 2032 to January 7, 2034. The principabtassf the Trusts are $15.5
million of the Company’s subordinated debentureth wdentical rates of interest and maturities &stthst preferred securities. The Trusts
have issued $465,000 of common securities to thepaay.

The trust preferred securities, the assets of thist3 and the common securities issued by the Sarst redeemable in whole or in part
beginning on or after December 31, 2008, or attamg in whole but not in part from the date of @soe on the occurrence of certain
events. The obligations of the Company with resp@the issuance of the trust preferred securé@sstitutes a full and unconditional

guarantee by the Company of the Trusts’' obligatiatith respect to the trust preferred securitiesubj&ct to certain exceptions and
limitations, the Company may elect from time toeito defer subordinated debenture interest paymehtsh would result in a deferral of

distribution payments on the related trust prefesecurities.

As currently defined by the Federal Reserve Botire,Company had $15.0 million of long-term debt thaalified as Tier 1 capital at
December 31, 2009 and 2008. The Company had $a#ign and $13.0 million of long-term debt thatalified as Tier 2 capital at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

During 2008, the Company modified a $5.0 millionsecured line of credit with a correspondent barfkwbich $3.0 million is
outstanding at December 31, 2009, to be extend&thteh 31, 2020. In connection with this modifioat the Company obtained a $3.0
million subordinated debenture that, as a conditmithe line of credit modification, requires ther@any to keep at least a $500,000
principal balance outstanding on the line of crediitil the subordinated debenture is paid in fuflthe Company does not maintain the
$500,000 balance, there is a $150,000 prepaymerdltpe During 2009, the Company has maintainedeast a $500,000 principal
balance outstanding on the line of credit. Du20§9, the correspondent bank was put into reca@mwith the FDIC. As a result, the
undrawn $2 million of availability under this unseed line of credit has been withdrawn by the FDIChe line of credit also has debt
covenants, the more restrictive of which requires@ompany to maintain certain capital ratios atdrn on asset ratios. As of December
31, 2009, the Company is not in compliance witho&lthe covenants. While the lender has not caledine of credit, it has the right to
do so. Accordingly, the Company has developedradtares to replace this line of credit, if necegsay obtaining financing from other
sources, raising capital or by receiving dividefrden its subsidiaries to pay off the debt. As sute management does not believe that
default of this covenant will have a material adeeaffect on the Company’s financial conditionta tesults of its operations.

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES
Deferred tax assets are recognized for future dédde@mounts resulting from differences in theaficial statement and tax bases of assets
and liabilities and operating loss carryforwardsvaluation allowance is then established to redte¢ deferred tax asset to the level that

it is "more likely than not" that the tax benefitlvbe realized. The realization of a deferred enefit by the Company depends upon
having sufficient taxable income of an appropra@taracter in the future periods.
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Income tax expense for the years ended Decemb&089, 2008 and 2007 consists of the following:

2009 2008 2007
Current income tax expense (In Thousands)
Federal $ 5,776 3,565 5,210
State 596 324 465
6,372 3,889 5,675
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Federal (2,248) (551) (801)
State 229 (82) (68)
(2,019) (633) (869)
Total income tax expense $ 4,353 3,256 4,806

A reconciliation from expected Federal tax expewsactual income tax expense for the years endegmiger 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
using the base federal tax rates of 35%, 34% af B&spectively, is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Computed federal income taxes $ 4,033 2,994 4,578
State income tax, net of federal benefit 311 300 262
Change in valuation allowance (38) 43 38
Other, net 47 (81) (72)
Total income tax expense $ 4,353 3,256 4,806

The following is a summary of the tax effects ahporary differences that give rise to significaottipns of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets: (In Thousands)
Loan loss reserve $ 4,431 4,071
Loan fees 157 240
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 4,417 5,528
Tax vs. book gain on loans held for sale 26 50
Debt issuance costs 101 106
Net operating loss carryforwards 106 203
Reserve for mortgage loan buy-back 1,031 62
OREO write-downs 353 -
Securities yield adjustments 230 -
Other 218 92
11,070 10,352
Valuation allowance (106) (203)
Total gross deferred tax assets 10,964 10,149
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation (360) (102)
Stock-based compensation (123) (254)
Short-term disability accrual (132) (246)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (615) (602)
Deferred tax assets, net $ 10,349 9,547
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A portion of the annual change in the net defemedme tax asset relates to unrealized gains as@$oon debt and equity securities. The
related 2009 and 2008 deferred income tax benkf2dl million and $5.6 million, respectively, weacorded directly to stockholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other compsdeincome. The balance of the 2009 and 2008gshan the net deferred tax asset
of $2.0 million and $633,000, respectively, iseefed as a deferred income tax benefit in the dintzsed statement of operations.

The 2009 and 2008 valuation allowances relatedate siet operating loss carryforwards. It is managnt’s belief that the realization of
the remaining net deferred tax assets is moreylikeln not.

At December 31, 2009, income tax returns from 2@08;7 and 2006 remain subject to review by tax@ittbs.
NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has entered into agreements to lessfide facilities under noncancellable operatliegse agreements expiring on various

dates through June 2020. The Company’s rentalnseptor its office facilities for the years endedddmber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
totaled $807,000, $524,000 and $507,000, respégtifdinimum rental commitments (in thousands) untthe leases are as follows:

2010 $ 517
2011 482
2012 495
2013 507
2014 339
Thereafter 292

Total $ 2,632

NOTE 13 — ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUM ENTS

Current accounting literature requires disclosatasut the fair value of all financial instrumentiether or not recognized in the balance
sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate #adue. In cases where quoted market prices ar@vwtable, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other techniquésose techniques are significantly affected by desumptions used, including the
discount rate and estimates of future cash flosthat regard, the derived fair value estimatemoabe substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could eatedélized through immediate settlement of therumsént. Certain items are
specifically excluded from disclosure requiremeitsjuding the Company’s stock, premises and egeigmaccrued interest receivable
and payable and other assets and liabilities.

The fair value of a financial instrument is an amat which the asset or obligation could be exglednn a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced sale. Railues estimates are made at a specific poiniria based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instrumentsecBuse no market value exists for a significantiqoiof the financial instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regardingefexpected loss experience, current economiditons, risk characteristics of
various financial instruments, and other factors.

The Company has used Management'’s best estiméae oBlue based on the above assumptions. Thufathvalues presented may not
be the amounts that could be realized in an imnediae or settlement of the instrument. In addjtany income taxes or other expenses
that would be incurred in an actual sale or settlgnare not taken into consideration in the falues presented.

Cash and due from banks - The carrying amount @getfinancial instruments approximate fair valudl mature within 90 days and
present no anticipated credit concerns.

Interest-bearing cash - The carrying amount ofd@Hig&ncial instruments approximate fair value.

Securities available for sale and securities helthaturity — Fair values for investment securitesilable for sale and securities held to
maturity are based upon quoted prices, if availalileguoted prices are not available, fair valaes measured using independent pricing
models or other model-based valuation techniqueb as the present value of future cash flows, aeljufor the security’s credit rating,
prepayment assumptions and other factors suctedg toss assumptions.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock and other non-marletaljuity securities - The carrying amount of thésencial instruments
approximate fair value.

-41 -



CAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009aND 2008

Derivative assets — Fair values are based on quateklet prices, where available. If quoted maghtates are not available, estimated fair
values are based on quoted market prices of collearestruments.

Loans held for sale and loans receivable, net -vBaable-rate loans that reprice frequently angdehao significant change in credit risk,
estimated fair values are based on carrying valesimated fair values for certain mortgage loanedit card loans, and other consumer
loans are based on quoted market prices of sitoidenrs sold in conjunction with securitization tracons, adjusted for differences in loan
characteristics. Estimated fair values for commaéreal estate and commercial loans are estimaged) discounted cash flow analyses,
using interest rates currently being offered fane with similar terms to borrowers of similar dteguality. Estimated fair values for
impaired loans are estimated using discounted fi@shanalyses or underlying collateral values, vehapplicable.

Accrued interest receivable - The fair value appnates the carrying value.

Deposits - The estimated fair value of demand depasavings accounts, and money market accoutite iamount payable on demand at
the reporting date. The estimated fair value xddimaturity certificates of deposits is estimatgdliscounting the future cash flows using
rates currently offered for deposits of similar eéning maturities.

Short-term borrowed funds - The carrying amountfederal funds purchased, borrowings under repgeclagreements, and other short-
term borrowings maturing within 90 days approxinthggr fair values. Estimated fair values of othkort-term borrowings are estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses based on thap@uoy’'s current incremental borrowing rates for ikimtypes of borrowing
arrangements.

Long-term debt - The estimated fair values of tleenpany’s long-term debt are estimated using disealinash flow analyses based on
the Company’s current incremental borrowing ratessfmilar types of borrowing arrangements.

Derivative liabilities - Fair values are based aroigd market prices, where available. If quotedketgprices are not available, estimated
fair values are based on quoted market pricesmpeapable instruments.

Commitments to extend credit — The carrying amadithese commitments is considered to be a reat®eatimate of fair value because
the commitments underlying interest rates are baped current market rates.

Accrued interest payable - The fair value approx@sdhe carrying value.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value ofGbenpany's financial instruments at December 30920hd 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets: (In Thousands)
Cash and due from banks $ 2,901 2,901 25,206 25,206
Interest-bearing cash 17,759 17,759 16,285 16,285
Securities available for sale 104,401 104,401 120,988 120,988
Securities held to maturity 125,633 105,450 113,689 106,485
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 12,456 12,456 11,874 11,874
Other investments 465 465 465 465
Derivative assets 2,342 2,342 1,999 1,999
Loans held for sale 71,233 71,682 28,283 28,823
Loans receivable, net 690,163 699,069 776,621 766,178
Accrued interest receivable 4,550 4,550 4,510 4,510
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 761,108 731,567 717,389 721,736
Short-term borrowed funds 43,787 45,599 148,090 148,095
Long-term debt 203,638 209,359 218,465 230,856
Derivative liabilities 891 891 959 959
Accrued interest payable 1,484 1,484 2,764 2,764
Notional Estimated Notional Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit $ 50,100 $ - 85,100 -
Standby letters of credit $ 910 $ - 3,400 -

In determining appropriate levels, the Company grens a detailed analysis of the assets and lissilithat are subject to fair value
disclosures. At each reporting period, all asaats liabilities for which the fair value measuremienbased on significant unobservable
inputs are classified as Level 3.

Assets and liabilities that are carried at fairneahre classified in one of the following threeegaties based on a hierarchy for ranking the
quality and reliability of the information useddetermine fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for idegitassets or liabilities.
Level 2 Observable market based inputs or unobbé\inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corrotearéy market data.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oecarring basis are as follows as of December 8292nd 2008:

Quoted market price  Significant other Significant other
in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inda

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 2009

Available-for-sale investment securities  $ - 4,117 -
Mortgage-backed securities - 100,284 -
Asset-back securities - - -
Total $ - 104,40: -
December 31, 2008

Available-for-sale investment securities  $ - - -
Mortgage-backed securities - 107,472 -
Asset-back securities - 13,516 -
Total $ - 120,988 -
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Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring bas as follows as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Quoted market price Significant other Significant otrer
in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inpsl

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 2009

Impaired loans $ - 68,979 -
Real estated owned - 7,853 -
Tota $ - 76,83: -
December 31, 2008

Impaired loans $ - 15,510 -
Real estated owned - 7,105 -
Tota $ - 22,61 -

The Company predominantly lends with real estateirsg as collateral on a substantial majority adrls. Loans that are deemed to be
impaired are primarily valued at fair values of tirederlying real estate collateral.

NOTE 14 - OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A ND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company is party to financial instruments vaffibalance-sheet risk in the normal course of hess to meet the financing needs of
its customers. These financial instruments inclem@mitments to extend credit. These instrumentsive, to varying degrees, elements
of credit risk in excess of the amount recognizethe consolidated balance sheets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eeémonperformance by the other party to the finahitistrument for commitments to
extend credit is represented by the contractualuamtnof these instruments. The Company uses the sasdit policies in making
commitments as for on-balance sheet instrumentsDekember 31, 2009 and 2008, the Banks had conanttrto extend credit in the
amount of $50.1 million and $85.1 million, respeety. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Banksstaddby letters of credit in the
amount of $910,000 and $3.4 million, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to feral customer as long as there is no violatioarof condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed exjgratates or other termination clauses and mayinegupayment of a fee. Since
commitments may expire without being drawn upom, tittal commitments do not necessarily represemtducash requirements. The
Company evaluates each customer's creditworthimress case-by-case basis. The amount of colladbtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company upon extension of credit, is based anagement's credit evaluation of the party. Gafttheld varies, but may include
inventory, property and equipment, residential esaéte and income producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit obligate the Company tenhtertain financial obligations of its customéfisunder the contractual terms of the
agreement, the customers are unable to do so. dpdyisnonly guaranteed under these letters of trgabn the borrower’s failure to
perform its obligations to the beneficiary. Then@mmny can seek recovery of the amounts paid frenbtirower and the letters of credit
are generally not collateralized. Commitments urslandby letters of credit are usually one yealess. At December 31, 2009, the
Company has recorded no liability for the curreatrging amount of the obligation to perform as armgmtor; as such amounts are not
considered material. The maximum potential of scolinted future payments related to standby letfecsedit at December 31, 2009 was
approximately $910,000.

The Company uses derivatives primarily to neutealiterest rate risk related to its pipeline okrest rate lock commitments issued on
residential mortgage loans in the process of caitm for sale. At December 31, 2009 and 2008 Gbmpany’s outstanding mortgage
interest rate lock commitments totaled $223.9 omlland $223.0 million, respectively. The Compasgsuforward mortgage loan sales
commitments that generally correspond with the ausiipn of the locked pipeline to hedge a percemtaigthe Company’s pipeline of
mortgage loan interest rate lock commitments arahdoheld for sale. At December 31, 2009 and 2€@8,Company’s outstanding
forward mortgage loan sales commitments totaled®1illion and $121.0 million, respectively. TBempany’s derivative positions are
marked to market as shown in Note 3 - Derivatives.

Management closely monitors its credit concentratiand attempts to diversify the portfolio withis imarket area. The Company’s

markets are concentrated along coastal South @aroliAt December 31, 2009, the Company has appaigign $612.9 million of
commercial real estate loan exposure.
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NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan that coverstanlially all employees of Community FirstBank,e€tent Bank, and Carolina
Services (“CFC participants”). During 2004, then@any added Crescent Mortgage (“CMC Participansés’)a separate group that
participated in the plan. Participants may coniiebup to the maximum allowed by the regulatioruriflg 2008, and 2007 the Company
matched 75% of an employee’s contribution up t@% ®f the participant’s compensation of the CFQiBiaants and matched 50% of an
employee’s contribution up to 4.00% of the parteifs compensation of the CMC Participants. Du@0g9, the Company matched 75%
of an employee’s contribution up to 6.00% of thetipgant's compensation of the CFC Participantd #re CMC Participants. For the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, dhgp&hy made matching contributions of $370,000,98X8 and $290,000,
respectively.

The Company has an arrangement with four executiesreby the Company paid a lump sum payment t;surance company on
behalf of the executives. The advance is treased laan to the executives and the cash surreradiee of the payment to the insurance
company is included in other assets in the accogipgrconsolidated statements of financial conditiothe cash surrender value of the
advance at December 31, 2009 and 2008 is $1.6omiind $1.7 million, respectively. The executiges entitled to the increase in cash
value above the Company’s original cash value arste contributions. The executives pay the Compampyted interest on the loan
balance and the increase in the cash value isded@s compensation to the executives. The insenaolicy premiums are paid in full by
the executives. Generally, each executive isledtib receive a $1.0 million death benefit and @wmpany will receive a $1.8 million
death benefit. Since the executives pay the imegraremiums, the insurance proceeds will be taxahthe Company.

NOTE 16 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividiegincome by the weighted average number of comshamnes outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is calculatgdiikiding net income by the weighted average nunddecommon shares outstanding
plus the weighted average number of additional comshares that would have been outstanding if illnévé potential common shares
had been issued. Diluted earnings per share iadbe effects of outstanding stock options issugdhe Company if dilutive. The

number of additional shares is calculated by assgritiat outstanding stock options were exercisetl that the proceeds from such
exercises were used to acquire shares of commok atdhe average market price during the reportiergod.

The following is a summary of the reconciliationasferage shares outstanding for the years endeghiiber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

2009 2008 2007
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding 1,912,449 1,912,449 1,883,101 1,883,101 1,794,659 1,794,659

Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options - 12,271 - 77,261 - 159,733

Average shares outstanding 1,912,449 1,924,720 1,883,101 1,960,362 1,794,659 1,954,392

The average market price used in calculating theidé securities under the treasury stock mettwdHe years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007 was $17.53, $44.92 and $50.40, reesglgc For fiscal 2009, 42,703 option shares wexeluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share at some time duringoth®d because the exercise prices were greaterttigaaverage market price of the
common shares, and therefore would have been #utiivd. For fiscal years 2008 and 2007, there waweoptions excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per share. The gamy does not have an actively traded market $oshitres and, accordingly, the average
market price used in calculating dilutive secusiiie based on a very limited number of transactions

NOTE 17 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND OTHER RESTRICTIO NS

The Company and the Banks are subject to varioderék and state regulatory requirements, includegulatory capital requirements.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements cétigite certain mandatory and possible additionstiitionary actions that if undertaken
could have a direct material effect on the Compswrayid the Banks’ financial statements. Under abpidlequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidche Company and the Banks must meet specific dagitaelines that involve
guantitative measures of the Company’s and the 8adsets, liabilities, and certain off-balanceetlitems as calculated under regulatory
methods. The Company’s and the Banks’ capital amsoand classifications are also subject to qual@gudgments by the regulators
about components, risk weighting and other factérs.of December 31, 2009, the most recent notifioafrom federal banking agencies
categorized the Company and the Banks as “welltaigggd” under the regulatory framework. In orderbe considered “adequately
capitalized”, the Company and the Banks are reduivemaintain minimum Tier 1 capital and total rissed capital to risk weighted
assets and Tier 1 capital to total average as6d®&p8%, and 3%, respectively. In order to bestdered “well capitalized”, the Company
and the Banks are required to maintain minimum Tieapital and total risk based capital to riskghédd assets and Tier 1 capital to total
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average assets of 6%, 10%, and 5%, respectivalyce December 31, 2009, there have been no evemtsnditions that management
believes have changed the Company’s or the Baegsilatory capital categories.

The actual capital amounts and ratios for the Comaad the Banks at December 31, 2009 and 2008sah@lows:

2009 2008

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars In Thousands)

Carolina Financial Corporation

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 78,773 9.2% 71,208 8.4%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 101,696 11.9% 94,780 11.2%

Tier 1 capital (to total avg assets) 78,773 7.3% 71,208 6.4%
Community FirstBank

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 45,166 10.4% 36,590 8.9%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 55,633 12.8% 46,754 11.3%

Tier 1 capital (to total avg assets) 45,166 7.7% 36,590 6.6%
Crescent Bank

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 35,404 8.4% 33,806 8.1%

Total risk based capital (to risk weighted assets) 47,849 11.4% 47,027 11.3%

Tier 1 capital (to total avg assets) 35,404 7.2% 33,806 6.3%

Any future dividend payments by the Company willrhade primarily from dividends received from thenBsiand Crescent Mortgage.
Under applicable federal law, the Banks are redstli¢o total dividend payments in any calendar yearet profits of that year combined
with retained net profits for the two preceding ngeaAt December 31, 2009, the Banks had $18.0amilbf retained net profits free of
such restriction.

NOTE 18 — SUPPLEMENTAL SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has three reportable segments: comyrheniking, mortgage banking and other. The comtpdranking segment provides
traditional banking services offered through ComityuRirstBank and Crescent Bank. The mortgage lmn&egment provides mortgage
loan origination and servicing offered through Ce¥ Mortgage. The other segment provides maredgerd operational support to the
other business segments through Carolina Serviceé€arolina Financial.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesesthose described in the summary of signifiaaobunting policies. The Company
evaluates performance based on net income.

The Company accounts for intersegment revenuesegpenses as if the revenue/expense transactiores tavethird parties, that is, at
current market prices.

The Company’s reportable segments are strategiodsssunits that offer different products and s®msi They are managed separately
because each segment has different types and kdvaledit and interest rate risk.

The following tables present selected financiabinfation for the Company’s reportable business segsnfor the years ended December
31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (In Thousands):
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Community Mortgage
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 Banking Banking ter Eliminations Total
Interest income $ 55,296 1,431 23 14) 56,736
Interest expense 23,283 1,037 713 (14) 25,019
Net interest income (expense) 32,013 394 (690) - 31,717
Provision for loan losses 10,460 - - - 10,460
Noninterest income from external customers 4,014 23,924 - - 27,938
Intersegment noninterest income - - 4,422 (4,422) -
Noninterest expense 18,038 14,211 5,424 - 37,673
Intersegment noninterest expense 3,840 582 - (4,422) -
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,689 9,525 (1,692) - 11,522
Income tax expense (benefit) 1,348 3,594 (589) - 4,353
Net income (loss) $ 2,341 5,931 (1,103) - 7,169
Assets $ 1,051,233 35,607 83,753 (91,836) 1,078,757
Loans receivable, net 690,563 - - (400) 690,163
Loans held for sale 43,412 27,821 - - 71,233
Deposits 763,538 - - (2,430) 761,108
Borrowed funds 209,899 19,062 18,865 (401) 247,425
Community Mortgage

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008 Banking Banking therO Eliminations Total
Interest income $ 62,064 960 72 47) 63,049
Interest expense 31,488 539 1,247 (47) 33,227
Net interest income 30,576 421 (1,175) - 29,822
Provision for loan losses 6,361 - - - 6,361
Noninterest income (expense) from

external customers 4,304 5,260 (337) - 9,227
Intersegment noninterest income - - 4,536 (4,536) -
Noninterest expense 14,186 4,939 4,757 - 23,882
Intersegment noninterest expense 3,780 756 - (4,536) -
Income (loss) before income taxes 10,553 14 (1,733) - 8,806
Income tax expense (benefit) 3,853 (5) (592) - 3,256
Net income (loss) $ 6,700 (9) (1,141) - 5,550
Assets $ 1,111,268 26,827 76,520 (75,621) 1,138,994
Loans receivable, net 776,802 156 - (337) 776,621
Loans held for sale 6,684 21,599 - - 28,283
Deposits 719,655 - - (2,266) 717,389
Borrowed funds 327,001 21,090 18,802 (338) 366,555
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Community Mortgage
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 Banking Banking therO Eliminations Total
Interest income $ 65,042 468 120 (58) 65,572
Interest expense 35,332 365 1,646 (58) 37,285
Net interest income (expense) 29,710 103 (1,526) - 28,287
Provision for loan losses 1,775 - - - 1,775
Noninterest income from external customers 3,495 5,374 - - 8,869
Intersegment noninterest income - - 4,296 (4,296) -
Noninterest expense 12,902 5,129 4,270 - 22,301
Intersegment noninterest expense 3,924 372 - (4,296) -
Income (loss) before income taxes 14,604 29 (1,500) - 13,080
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,329 (8) (515) - 4,806
Net income (loss) $ 9,275 (16) (985) - 8,274
Assets $ 970,440 5,969 70,206 (69,476) 977,139
Loans receivable, net 738,638 404 - (337) 738,705
Loans held for sale 22,361 2,669 - - 25,030
Deposits 693,780 - - (1,680) 692,100
Borrowed funds 203,751 1,353 18,802 (338) 223,568
NOTE 19 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The condensed financial statements for the pa@npany are presented below:
Carolina Financial Corporation
Condensed Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2009 and 2008
2009 2008

Assets: (In Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 895 747

Investment in bank subsidiaries 72,627 60,779

Investment in non-bank subsidiaries 372 3,681

Investment in unconsolidated statutory businessgru 465 465

Securities available for sale 502 -

Other assets 127 6

Total assets 74,988 65,678

Liabilities and stockholders' equity:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 385 622

Short-term debt 3,000 3,000

Long-term debt 15,465 15,465

Stockholders' equity 56,138 46,591

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 74,988 65,678
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Carolina Financial Corporation
Condensed Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200

2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Dividend income from bank subsidiaries 900 - 1,500
Dividend income from non-bank subsidiaries 1,000 - 150
Interest income 23 40 58
Other income 126 300 372
Total income 2,049 340 2,080
Interest expense 704 1,210 1,607
General and administrative expenses 805 755 666
Total expenses 1,509 1,965 2,273
Loss before income taxes and equity in undistribagenings of subsidiaries 540 (1,625) (193)
Income tax benefit (464) (552) (643)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed eaysiof subsidiaries 1,004 (1,073) 450
Equity in undistributed earnings of Community Festk 1,894 3,108 3,410
Equity in undistributed earnings of Crescent Bank 1,598 3,692 4,366
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of Crestortgage 2,881 9) (16)
Equity in undistributed (losses) earnings of Caeolervices (208) (68) 64
Total equity in undistributed earnings of subsidir 6,165 6,623 7,824
Net income 7,16¢ 5,550 8,274
Carolina Financial Corporation
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200
2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities: (In Thousands)
Net income 7,169 5,550 8,274
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings in subsidiaries (6,165) (6,623) (7,824)
Stock-based compensation 390 365 315
(Increase) decrease in other assets (8) 39 93
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (508) (111) 340
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 878 (780) 1,198
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of securities available for sale (35) - -
Equity investment in bank subsidiaries (700) - (3,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (735) - (3,000)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of short-term borrowed funds - - 2,000
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 5 844 111
Net cash provided by financing activities 5 844 2,111
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equs/alent 148 64 309
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 747 683 374
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 89t 747 683
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NOTE 20 — QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITE D)

The tables below represent the quarterly resultgpefations for the years ending December 31, 220®8 and 2007 respectively:

2009
First Second Third Fourth
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Total interest income $ 14,587 14,458 14,039 13,652
Total interest expense 6,992 6,626 5,950 5,451
Net interest income 7,595 7,832 8,089 8,201
Provision for loan losses 1,661 2,206 2,516 4,077
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 5,934 5,626 5,573 4,124
Noninterest income 5,354 8,469 5,624 8,491
Noninterest expense 7,901 10,097 9,049 10,626
Income before taxes 3,387 3,998 2,148 1,989
Income tax expense 1,249 1,525 813 766
Net income $ 2,13¢ 2,47 1,33t 1,22:
Basic earnings per share $ 1.12 1.29 0.70 0.64
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.12 1.29 0.70 0.61
2008
First Second Third Fourth
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Total interest income $ 16,694 15,612 15,401 15,342
Total interest expense 9,476 8,311 7,725 7,715
Net interest income 7,218 7,301 7,676 7,627
Provision for loan losses 1,280 607 1,524 2,950
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 5,938 6,694 6,152 4,677
Noninterest income 3,192 2,473 1,713 1,849
Noninterest expense 6,227 6,488 5,152 6,015
Income before taxes 2,903 2,679 2,713 511
Income tax expense 1,068 979 1,012 197
Net income $ 1,835 1,700 1,701 314
Basic earnings per share $ 1.01 0.89 0.89 0.16
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.94 0.87 0.86 0.16
2007
First Second Third Fourth
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Total interest income $ 15,371 16,598 17,210 16,393
Total interest expense 8,584 9,293 9,751 9,657
Net interest income 6,787 7,305 7,459 6,736
Provision for loan losses 380 445 270 680
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,407 6,860 7,189 6,056
Noninterest income 1,969 2,267 2,245 2,388
Noninterest expense 5,205 5,548 5,908 5,640
Income before taxes 3,171 3,579 3,526 2,804
Income tax expense 1,166 1,311 1,297 1,032
Net income $ 2,005 2,268 2,229 1,772
Basic earnings per share $ 1.12 1.26 1.24 0.99
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.02 1.16 1.14 0.91
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